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OFTA’s VISION is clear and focused — to enable Hong Kong to have an
advanced telecommunications infrastructure and the best telecommunications
services to meet the challenges of the Information Age. We work to enhance the
competitiveness of Hong Kong as the telecommunications, broadcasting and
Internet hub in the Asia-Pacific region. Our regulatory regime is proliberalisation,
pro-competition and pro-consumer, one which seeks to ensure that the widest
range of quality telecommunications services are available to consumers at
reasonable prices.
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OFTA’s dedicated team is guided by a shared MISSION to improve the quality
of life of our community. As the industry regulator, our focus is on cultivating
a favourable environment where consumers’ interest are protected, while
commercial incentives to invest in the telecommunications infrastructure are
preserved through measures to ensure fair competition, thereby maintaining our
competitive edge as a pre-eminent telecommmunications centre conducive to
business development.
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None of the above is possible without a cohesive and versatile team. Our staff is
our greatest asset. To achieve our mission, we uphold the VALUES of integrity,
professionalism and respect for our clients, our staff and the community. We
adopt a proactive attitude and react promptly and effectively to the rapidly
changing market and the new demands on the regulatory framework.
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Telecommunications Market
Continues to Prosper

Continued to be driven by mobile data service, the growth of the
local telecommunications market remained strong in the past
year. As at March 2012, our monthly data usage exceeded 5,000
terabytes, representing a 2.1-fold increase over the volume in
the same period in 2011. Our mobile penetration rate exceeded
210%, one of the highest in the world. Aimost eight million of our
mobile service users are 3G or 4G service subscribers, out of a
total of 15 million. The launch of 4G service, which provides data
speed of up to 100 megabits per second (Mbps) while the users
are on the move, and up to 1 gigabit per second (Gbps) while
stationary, has greatly enhanced user experience in deploying the
mobile broadband services. As the 4G service has just made its
debut, we anticipate that this will be the driving force for the future

growth of the local mobile market.

Apart from the booming mobile market, the local fixed
broadband service also continued to prosper in the past
year. As at March 2012, there were over two million fixed-line
broadband subscribers in Hong Kong, with a household
broadband penetration rate of 87%, making us one of the
leading metropolitans in the world in terms of the percentage
of households subscribing to broadband services. Indeed,
in terms of coverage of fibre-to-the-home (FTTH) and
fibre-to-the-building (FTTB) network, Hong Kong was ranked
number three (behind Korea and the United Arab Emirates) by
the Fiber-to-the-Home Council in February 2012, among the 30
economies that have at least 1% of their households served by

FTTB service providers.

Ensuring Effective Measures to
Protect Consumers’ Interest

The local telecommunications market is dynamic, vibrant
and highly competitive. We must not be complacent with our
achievements, however. We have been monitoring closely the
rapid market developments constantly, to ensure that effective
measures are implemented in a timely manner so that we may keep

abreast with these developments and uphold consumers’ interest.

In 2011, there was widespread public concemn on the lack of
transparency of the Fair Usage Policy (FUP) implemented by
service providers. Service restrictions imposed under the FUP
can take the form of a reduced data access speed when data
usage of a user exceeds a certain threshold. The FUP has been
commonly applied by service providers to ensure that their
customers could have a fair chance to access their services and
to prevent possible abuses by a small number of customers.
Consumers however were generally not aware of the FUP. In
response to the public concern, we promulgated the “Guidelines
for the Implementation of Fair Usage Policy for the Provision of
Mobile and Fixed Broadband Services” (the FUP Guidelines) in
November 2011, setting out clearly the principles governing how
service providers should implement the FUP. The FUP Guidelines
took effect from February 2012 and full compliance by service
providers is mandatory. We will closely monitor the compliance
status of service providers and take regulatory actions against any

operator who fails to comply.
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In October 2011, we launched another initiative by publishing a
voluntary “Code of Practice in Relation to Biling Information and
Payment Collection for Telecommunications Services” (the CoP),
which aims to enhance the pricing transparency of chargeable
telecommunications service items. Most of the local fixed and
mobile network operators have pledged to comply and their
compliance status will be published on our website regularly for
public scrutiny. We will closely monitor the effectiveness of the

CoP.

Self-Regulatory Measures
Implemented by the Industry to
Enhance Consumer Protection

Over the years, we have been actively encouraging the industry to
adopt self-regulatory measures to enhance consumer protection.
The implementation of the voluntary “Industry Code of Practice
for Telecommunications Service Contracts” (the Industry Code)
represented a landmark development in this regard. The Industry
Code was issued by the Communications Association of Hong
Kong (CAHK) at the end of 2010. Effective since July 2011,
all major fixed and mobile network operators and one major
external telecommunications service operator have followed
the Industry Code and implemented necessary measures
to enhance consumer protection upon signing or renewal of
service contracts. The Industry Code reflects the commitment of
service operators to protecting consumers’ interest and reducing
consumer complaints in relation to contractual matters. We will
maintain a close dialogue with the industry to ensure the effective

implementation of the Industry Code.

Beginning June 2011, with the assistance and support of CAHK,
all major fixed and mobile operators participated in another
self-regulatory scheme on person-to-person marketing calls. The
objective of the scheme is to encourage telecommunications
operators to implement measures to minimise nuisance
caused by marketing calls to the public. Hand in hand with this
industry initiative, we have also stepped up our public education
campaigns to educate the public about the self-regulatory
scheme and advise members of the public on how they may

avoid receiving person-to-person marketing calls.

Billing disputes between telecommunications service operators
and customers is one of the major causes for consumer
complaints. To tackle this problem, we announced in March 2012
that a voluntary Customer Complaint Settlement Scheme (CCSS)
would be set up as an alternative dispute resolution mechanism
to provide a quick, effective and economical way to resolve
deadlock biling disputes. The CCSS has gained support of all
major telecommunications service providers. With the support
of CAHK, an agent will be set up to manage and operate the
CCSS, while we will provide the necessary funding and other
administrative support. We expect the CCSS to commence
operation in the second half of 2012. It will undergo a two-year trial

period, before we decide on the way forward.

While we are grateful for the support and cooperation of the
industry in introducing various measures to tackle a variety of
consumer issues, we have not lost sight of the importance
of keeping the consumers informed so that they may make

judicious buying decisions and protect their own interests.
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In this connection, we organised a large number of consumer
education programmes and activities in the past year, including
the broadcast of TV and radio Announcements of Public Interests
(APIs), short videos, arranging public seminars, school talks and
roving exhibitions. We will continue our effort to educate the public

on how to use telecommunications services smartly.

Conducting Regulatory Reviews to
Cope with Market Changes

Review of Local Access Charge (LAC)

We continue to conduct reviews to ensure that our regulatory
framework keeps in pace with market developments. In the past
year, we completed a review of the LAC regulatory regime, taking
into account the significant changes in the local and external
telecommunications market that had taken place since the
liberalisation of the external service market in 1999. Following two
rounds of industry consultation, we issued a Statement of the
Telecommunications Authority (TA Statement) in December 2011

setting out a new regime for LAC.

Under the new regime, both fixed and mobile network operators
are entitled to receive LAC for the conveyance of external
telecommunications traffic to and from end users, and the
level of LAC payment is subject to commercial negotiations by
interconnecting parties. The new regime will take effect from

1 July 2013 after a transitional period of 18 months.

Arrangements for 3G Licences

The radio spectrum in the 1.9 — 2.2 GHz band was assigned in
2001 to four network operators for the provision of 3G services.
These assignments will expire in October 2016. According to the
TA Statement issued in January 2008, these operators should
be notified, at least three years in advance, if their frequency
assignments were to be varied upon expiry. In March 2012, we
conducted the first round of consultation about the arrangements
of these frequency assignments upon their expiry. We plan to
conduct another round of consultation before a decision is to be

made by October 2013 on way forward.

Release of Radio Spectrum to Meet Market

Demands

In view of the increasing demand for public mobile services,
we release radio spectrum on a timely basis through auctions.
In February 2012, an auction was conducted for the release of
90 MHz of radio spectrum in the 2.3 GHz band. The spectrum
was successfully acquired by two incumbent mobile network
operators and a new entrant for a total spectrum utilisation fee of
HK$470 milion. We will hold another auction on the assignment
of 50 MHz of radio spectrum in the 2.5/2.6 GHz band for the

further development of 4G services in the first quarter of 2013.
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Updating Procedures on Investigating
Anti-competitive and Misleading or

Deceptive Conduct

With more experience in handling cases related to competition
(sections 7K, 7L and 7N of the Telecommunications Ordinance)
and misleading and deceptive conduct (section 7M of the
Telecommunications Ordinance) since the enactment of the
relevant provisions in 2000, we carried out a review of the
procedures as to how we should handle complaints related to
these provisions. A consultation was conducted in January 2012.
Having considered the views received from the consultation, we

issued the revised procedures in March 2012.

Multi-disciplinary Staff
to Meet Regulatory Challenges

We could not have attained all our achievements without a
dedicated team of professional colleagues and supporting staff.
To cope effectively with the regulatory challenges which arise from
the rapid technological and market developments, it is important
to ensure that we are equipped with a team of multi-disciplinary
regulatory staff with expertise in different areas, such as law,
economics, accounting, finance and information technology. With
the approval from the Legislative Council in November 2011, we
created a new civil service grade of Regulatory Affairs Manager
in the Office of the Telecommunications Authority (OFTA). The
recruitment exercises are currently ongoing and we expect that
the first batch of new recruits will report duty in the fourth quarter

of 2012.

Embarking on a New Regulatory Age

In view of the worldwide trend of broadcasting and
telecommunications convergence, a new unified regulatory
body, the Communications Authority (CA), will be established
on 1 April 2012 as a unified regulator for the entire electronic
communications sector. Its executive arm, the Office of the
Communications Authority (OFCA), formed by merging OFTA
and the relevant divisions of the Television and Entertainment
Licensing Authority (TELA), will be set up on the same day.
With the establishment of OFCA, | will assume the post of the
Director-General of Communications. This is therefore the
last OFTA Trading Fund Report, and this will also be the last
report that | present in my capacity as the Director-General of

Telecommunications.

As we embark on a new regulatory epoch, | wish to take this
opportunity to thank my colleagues at OFTA for their dedication
and hard work since 1993, when OFTA was first established.
Over the past 18 years, their concerted effort has made the
full liberalisation of the local telecommunications market and
the implementation of other significant regulatory changes a
reality. | also wish to thank the industry for their unfailing faith in
our pro-competition policy and market-driven approach. The
development of our competitive telecommunications market has
indeed been phenomenal and successful, out of all expectation.
Indeed, we are the envy of other advanced economies. | am
confident that the future OFCA will continue to enjoy the support

of all parties concerned in the years ahead.
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1993

e The first Internet service provider licensed to provide
commercial Internet services

e Global System for Mobile Communications (GSM) public
mobile service launched in Hong Kong

1995

¢ Progressive liberalisation of the local fixed-line market
e Change of telephone numbers from seven to eight digits

e The world’s first Code Division Multiple Access (CDMA) public
mobile service launched in Hong Kong

1997

e Full portability of fixed telephone numbers implemented

e Services of all six Personal Communications Services (PCS)
licensees launched in Hong Kong

1998

e Broadband Internet services launched in Hong Kong

e Full digitalisation of mobile services with the emergence of a
highly competitive mobile service market

e Agreement reached between the Government and Hong
Kong Telecom International on early termination of its
exclusive licence for external telecommunications services

1999
e | iberalisation of the external telecommunications service
market

¢ |[mplementation of mobile number portability

2000

e | iberalisation of the external telecommunications facilities
market

e Telecommunications (Amendment) Ordinance 2000
passed with provisions to safeguard competition in the
telecommunications industry

2001
e Inter-operator mobile short messaging service launched in
Hong Kong

e Four operators awarded 3G licences through the first
spectrum auction ever conducted in Hong Kong

2003

e Full liberalisation of the telecommunications market with no
limit on the number of fixed-line licences granted

2004

* 100 Mbps and 1000 Mbps residential broadband services
launched in Hong Kong

e Telecommunications Ordinance amended to include
provisions to regulate mergers and acquisitions in the
telecommunications industry

2005

e Lifting of the prior-approval requirement on PCCW-HKT
Telephone Limited’s prices via the issue of a new Fixed Carrier
Licence to shift from the ex ante to the ex post regulatory
approach

2006

e The first High Speed Downlink Packet Access (HSDPA)
mobile broadband network launched in Hong Kong

2007

e Full implementation of the Unsolicited Electronic Messages
Ordinance

2008

e Withdrawal of mandatory Type Il interconnection at the
telephone exchange level completed

e Implementation of a Unified Carrier Licence which enables
facility-based operators to provide fixed, mobile or converged
services under a single and flexible licensing framework

2009

e De-regulation of the Fixed Mobile Interconnection Charge

e Implementation of a modified Services-Based Operator
Licence as a single licensing vehicle to regulate all kinds
of service-based provision of public telecommunications
services

e Auction of spectrum in the 2.5 — 2.6 GHz bands for 4G mobile
services

2010
e Auction of spectrum in the 678 — 686 MHz band for the
provision of broadcast-type mobile TV services

OFFICE OF THE TELECOMMUNICATIONS AUTHORITY TRADING FUND REPORT 2011/12
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OFTA commissioned a consultancy study on the implications of Next Generation
Network (NGN) on the telecommunications regulatory framework in Hong Kong.

AT EETEARSWELEMBAN —REBEINERARG L MAFHEHAET
(BEARBEVEREBTRD - REZTH - ERAPHRREEERE -

All major fixed and mobile network operators and one major external
telecommunications services operator started to implement the “Industry Code of
Practice for Telecommunications Service Contracts”. Under the code, the rights and
interests of telecommunications users would be better safeguarded.

BEMEEERBEAEMRBAEM - REHUITHRIEREH IERT A E
SRREEANSERE(E R & -

The Commerce and Economic Development Bureau (CEDB) and OFTA jointly
announced the decision to impose the Spectrum Utilisation Fee (SUF) on non-
government uses of administratively assigned radio spectrum.

BERRAESMABRAREHEHEL —ERS - FEOMUFAERRF
AWK URSRBEMNERE - URBEBEIELEE - REHEER
B 20124 2 A M/AEREESI NHRE

OFTA issued a set of guidelines to provide guidance to fixed and mobile
broadband services providers on how they may implement the FUP and
to enhancing the transparency of service information to facilitate consumer
choices. Service providers are required to comply with the guidelines
on a mandatory basis starting from February 2012.



BEREERRE (BEMRER) B#H—0BH  MAERHIAHEREREHE
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MEEETIREEGERET - F18EABERHERE - FHIESN20134F
6 H30HEE -

The Telecommunications Authority (TA) issued a statement setting out his decisions
and the arrangements regarding the implementation of the new LAC regulatory regime.
Under the new regime, both fixed and mobile network operators are entitled to collect
LAC, and a more market-oriented approach has also been adopted whereby the level
of LAC will be set by commercial negotiations between the interconnecting parties. The
new regime will come into effect on 30 June 2013 after an 18-month transitional period.

BHBIE 23 EHEENA LA ESBITE ST R E
4187,000 87T - SR EIEMEIE RS -

OFTA auctioned off a total of 90 MHz of radio spectrum in the 2.3 GHz band, fetching
a total sum of SUF of HK$470 million for the provision of broadband wireless access
services.

BARERNEBPP T FERIETAREMERABRIRFTE ABiT8A
HMF o ZTEIE AR ELEHIE AN - iRERE - BRAMAEE BRSNS
R REARKEERNEATE Y MBRNERNIRBSULY - ZTEEHRN
2012 F T HFHMEE -

The TA set out in his statement his support for the implementation of a voluntary CCSS
by the industry with a two-year trial period. The voluntary scheme aims to provide
a quick, effective and economical way to resolve deadlock cases of biling disputes
between telecommunications service providers and customers outside the judicial
system. The scheme is targeted to commence operation in the second half of 2012.
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Mobile Market Continues to Flourish
and 4G Developments

Mobile services in Hong Kong have continued to flourish. By
March 2012, the number of mobile service subscribers reached
almost 15.3 million, representing a penetration rate of 215.3%.
The monthly mobile data usage in Hong Kong surged to
5,045 terabytes in March 2012, which was 2.1 times and
5.8 times the mobile data usage recorded during the same
period in 2011 and 2010 respectively. The average monthly
data usage volume for each 2.5G/3G/4G mobile user stood at

588 megabytes.

All five mobile network operators in Hong Kong are providing
2G and 3G services, and one of them has also launched 4G
services utilising Long Term Evolution (LTE) technology in
the 2.5/2.6 GHz band in May 2011. This has enabled mobile
service subscribers to enjoy data downlink speeds of up to
100 Mbps. With a wide range of high-speed mobile data
services available in the market, subscribers are able to
download and upload large files via the Internet and enjoy faster
and better quality video-streaming and web-browsing on mobile
devices. With the successful auction of the radio spectrum in the
2.3 GHz band in February 2012, mobile network operators will
be able to continue to deploy state-of-the-art mobile broadband
technologies and provide the necessary network capacities to

maintain the growth momentum of this booming service.

Steady Growth of Fixed Broadband
and Internet Protocol Television
Services

Broadband access to various applications and content
services has become an integral part of the life of people in
Hong Kong. With the ubiquitous availability of broadband
services, whether delivered through wireline or wireless
technologies, consumers are able to enjoy broadband access
almost everywhere, at home, in the office or outdoors. As
of March 2012, there were around 2.3 million residential

and commercial fixed-line broadband subscribers, with a

household penetration rate of 87%. Broadband services are
available at speeds that range from 1.5 Mbps to 1 Gbps.
According to the worldwide ranking published by the Fiber-
to-the-Home Council in February 2012, Hong Kong, with
45% of the household connected to FTTH or FTTB networks,
ranks number three worldwide (behind Korea and United Arab
Emirates) among the 30 economies that have at least 1% of
their households served by FTTH or FTTB service providers.
Meanwhile, Internet Protocol Television services continued
to grow, with the number of subscribers reaching almost

1.3 million at the end of 2011.

Review of the LAC Regulatory
Regime Completed

The review of the LAC arrangement was completed following
two rounds of industry consultation. On 23 December 2011, the
TA issued a statement setting out his decision on a new regime
for LAC, under which both fixed and mobile network operators
are entitled to receive LAC for the conveyance of external
telecommunications services traffic to and from end users,
and the level of LAC payment would be subject to commercial
negotiations by interconnecting parties. The new LAC regime
will be effective from 1 July 2013 after a transitional period of
18 months. We will closely monitor the progress of commercial
negotiations among the interconnecting parties on LAC during

the transitional period.
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Consultancy Study in relation

to Implications of NGN on the
Regulation of Telecommunications
Services in Hong Kong

Traditional telecommunications networks are primarily designed
for the provision of a single service. This limits the service
scope of a telecommunications network and prolongs the
time required for introduction of new services. The advent
of new technologies has made it possible to build a single
network for the provision of a variety of services, including
voice telephony, data, television and other multimedia services.
Such new networks, commonly referred to as NGN, serve as
an open platform through which service providers are able to
develop innovative services and applications, and establish
direct relationship with their customers. This contrasts with the
closed platform of traditional telecommunications network upon
which the bulk of services are normally provided by the network

operator itself.

Throughout the years, regulations for telecommunications
services in Hong Kong have been developed based on
traditional single-service networks. With a view to identifying
the implications of NGN on market players and end users
and to ascertaining the changes that are necessary to keep
the existing regulatory framework in pace with the NGN era,
we commissioned a study in May 2011 to review in a holistic
manner the implications of NGN development on the regulation
of telecommunications services in Hong Kong. The consultancy

study was completed in January 2012.

We have tasked the relevant working group and advisory
committees to discuss the various technical issues as
recommended by the consultant. Some recommendations
relate to the review of the current legislation and may take time to
complete. We will carefully consider the issues before we devise

proposals for consultation with the stakeholders.

Hong Kong Users Pay the Lowest
Telecommunications Service
Charges

According to the results of a study on international tariff
benchmarking released by OFTA in May 2011, residential
and business users in Hong Kong generally paid the lowest
telecommunications charges compared with their counterparts
in six other cities under comparison. Commissioned by
OFTA, the study compared the tariffs of fixed and mobile
voice services, fixed and mobile broadband services, leased
lines and pay-TV services between Hong Kong and those in
Copenhagen, London, New York, Shanghai, Singapore and
Tokyo. For certain services, the charges paid by Hong Kong

users were as low as one-tenth of those in the other cities.

Similar studies were commissioned in 2003, 2005 and 2008.
All these studies, together with the latest one, have affirmed
Hong Kong’s consistent position over the years as one of the
most affordable markets for telecommunications services. This
demonstrates the success of our pro-competition policy and
pro-market approach in encouraging the provision of quality

telecommunications services at affordable prices.

Preparation for the Establishment of
CA and OFCA

To meet the regulatory challenges arising from the convergence
of the telecommunications and broadcasting industries, the
Government has decided to set up a unified regulator, the CA,
for the two sectors. A Government department, viz OFCA, will
provide support to the CA as its executive arm. OFCA will be

formed by merging OFTA and the relevant divisions of TELA.

The CA, as a unified regulator, will serve as a one-stop-shop for
resolving regulatory issues in a converging environment and will
assume all the functions and powers currently conferred on the
Broadcasting Authority (BA) and the TA. The Communications

Authority Bill, which aims at establishing the unified regulator,
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On 1 April 2012, the
Communications Authority will
be established as a unified
regulatory body overseeing
the telecommunications and
broadcasting sectors.
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was passed in June 2011, to be brought into operation on
1 April 2012. The CA together with OFCA are to commence their

operations on the same date.

Serving as the executive arm of the CA, OFCA will operate
on a trading fund basis. The existing OFTA Trading Fund will
be rolled over and renamed as OFCA Trading Fund upon the
establishment of OFCA. The department will be headed by
a civil servant, the Director-General of Communications. The
mode of operation of the CA and its executive arm will be
largely modelled on the existing arrangements of the BA and the

Broadcasting Division of TELA.

We have been working in close collaboration with the CEDB
and TELA to prepare for the establishment of CA and OFCA.
A staged approach in building up the institution of the unified
regulator is adopted. At the first stage, the CA will be established
on 1 April 2012 with no immediate changes to the existing
regulatory and licensing arrangements for broadcasting and

telecommunications under the Broadcasting Ordinance and

Telecommunications Ordinance. In stage two, the CEDB will
in consultation with CA (with the support of OFCA) carry out a
holistic review of the two Ordinances and the existing regulatory

regimes.

Creation of New Civil Service Grade
of Regulatory Affairs Manager

To cope with regulatory challenges arising from the increasing
complexity and sophistication of technological and market
developments, we require a dedicated team of multi-disciplinary
regulatory staff with expertise in the fields of law, economics,
accounting, finance, business administration, information
technology and electronic engineering. The Finance Committee
of the Legislative Council has given its approval in November
2011 for the creation of a new civil service grade of Regulatory
Affairs Manager. We are making the necessary arrangements
with a view to bringing in the first intake of Regulatory Affairs

Manager by the fourth quarter of 2012.
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Strengthening Consumer Protection
for Use of Telecommunications
Services

Ongoing Implementation of
“Mobile Bill Shock” Preventive Measures

In recent years, we have witnessed a significant surge in the
number of mobile data users and corresponding data usage
volume as smart phones and advanced mobile devices become
increasingly popular. At the same time, the number of consumer
complaints relating to mobile broadband billing disputes has
also been on the rise since the end of 2009, and continued
through to 2010. These complaints are commonly referred to
as “mobile bill shock”, i.e. the shock consumers experience
upon receiving unexpectedly high mobile bill charges. Some
consumers also experienced “mobile bill shock” due mainly
to unintentional or inadvertent usage of data service, locally or

while roaming overseas.

To address the rising number of complaints related to
“mobile bill shock”, we promulgated with the industry a series
of preventive measures in May 2010, including: allowing
customers to opt-out of individual services; setting a charge
ceiling; setting a usage cap for all kinds of usage-based mobile
services; and alerting customers through short messages when
their pre-determined usage threshold is reached, or when their

roaming data usage is being triggered.

Along with these measures, we also organised a series of
consumer education activities to increase consumer awareness
of mobile data services. In December 2011, a data usage
calculator was introduced on our website to facilitate consumers

to estimate their data usage consumption.

With the implementation of the “mobile bill shock” measures by
mobile network operators and our consumer education efforts,
the number of bill dispute complaints on mobile data services in

2011 has decreased by 33% when compared with that of 2010.

BB E R IREF AR FE TR 2011 FAMG L% - Al BHE
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The significant drop of complaints relating to billing disputes over
mobile data services in 2011 has proved the success of our measures
in mitigating the “mobile bill shock "~ problem.

The FUP Guidelines

Mobile and fixed broadband service providers offer a variety of
service plans for consumers, including “unlimited” usage plans.
However, these “unlimited” usage plans are often subject to
limitations, in the name of FUP, imposed by service providers.
For example, service providers may impose restrictions through
reducing access speed for customers whose data usage has
exceeded a specified threshold. Service providers apply FUP
mainly to ensure their customers as a whole may have a fair
opportunity to enjoy and access their services and to prevent

possible abuses by a small number of customers.

Nevertheless, consumers in general are not aware of the
existence of FUP, nor do they understand the respective terms
and conditions. Users of unlimited service plans in particular feel
aggrieved when their data usage is subject to restrictions due to
the FUP.

OFFICE OF THE TELECOMMUNICATIONS AUTHORITY TRADING FUND REPORT 2011/12

22



23

EERAFHEMRBHER
Meeting Users’ Demands for
Telecommunications Services

RTREEEERZNESRBEMNBERAE - HMR
0MENARTT (RFERBERKIES) - URERBHE
AN ERE A HERREK - (A HERBORIES) B
SIRAFEABRERARALAT :

o REHERHTERERAMEE R EH B P EMN
EERS - BREMEANAFEARE

o  RBHEREEAEES [ER] —A0RE S
MEREMEANRFEARE  BDAESEREE
BR A RAEERIRIARR

o  RBHEHAEHAW FFRBGHEIIEENES
MHEERBIEFEREBARAHERBREAIR -
FRERA A FHERBREAE

o ERIMEMAHN  REHEHALATEBEFNA
RIS EEBX RN FEABERAR - LR - RIA
SEABERRREI B AT E ARSI

o BARBHERAHRBAKFIELRS - BRHITR
TMEE—REFPBTEBENM B RIAREEE

o IRIGHFERET EE KA TEBBERN T KA
BRTEPRADBA

o RFEABERT RN E M BT ZREAE ;A
K

o  REHEFPRBATERBRRAN R TBASHEN
BEP BB - WARESIRHBUZAEBMFALTE -

BB (ATERKEES) E201292 413 B4
3 o

EMEER 2011 12FLEBECHRES

BB BT AR 75 e 3 B H) R K ER W 5% B9 BT 75 <7 R
((EHTR))

AIREEMRGWETEE MERE - &MH2011 510 A%
it CEHBSTR]) - BIREATH REMERERIMUER R E
PeRftigs| - e mma kg

BE2012F3 A » RED A E RE M REN AR S MR EAGHE
B (EHTRD - ATEREPELASRE  SEHMAN
BB ERMOEW AT - HPEEDESR (B
ST MERIERAME o



In order to protect consumers’ interest and enhance the
transparency of service information, we promulgated in
November 2011 the FUP Guidelines governing how service
providers should implement their FUP. The FUP Guidelines set
out clearly the following principles governing the application of

FUP:

° Service providers shall not impose any limitations,
including any forms of FUP on subscribers of unlimited
local data service plans;

° Service providers promoting service plans with the
word “unlimited” included in the name thereof shall set
out clearly in the advertising and sales materials the
necessary qualifications if any form of FUP is applicable;

o Service providers shall set out in their websites, customer
service agreements and related advertising and sales
materials whether their plans are subject to FUP, the
forms of FUP applicable etc;

° Service providers shall clearly advise customers before
any contracts are concluded whether their service plans
are subject to FUP, and if so, the triggering mechanism
and the forms of restrictions applicable;

o Service providers may only restrict service levels in such
a manner that commensurate with what an average
customer would normally perceive as a broadband
service;

o Service providers shall give customers sufficient notice
before varying unilaterally the salient terms specified in the

FUP;

° FUP shall not be intermixed with provisions unrelated to
FUP; and

° Service providers shall provide advance notice to
customers with excessive usage before triggering FUP,

and provide detailed record of data usage upon request.

The mandatory FUP Guidelines have come into effect on

13 February 2012.

Code of Practice in Relation to Billing
Information and Payment Collection for
Telecommunications Services (the CoP)

With a view to enhancing the transparency of pricing of
chargeable items in telecommunications services, we issued the
CoP in October 2011. The CoP provides guidelines on the kind
of information to be included in the bills as well as arrangements
for payment collection, for compliance by operators on a

voluntary basis.

As of March 2012, the majority of local fixed and mobile network
operators have pledged compliance with the CoP. To enable
customers to make informed choices, the compliance status
of individual operators will be published on our website. We
will closely monitor the implementation and effectiveness of the
CoP.
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The “Industry Code of Practice for Telecommunications Service
Contracts” was implemented in July 2011 to afford consumers better
protection when they enter into a new contract or renew their existing
contracts.
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Achievements of Collaboration with
the Industry in Implementing
Self-regulatory Measures

Industry Code of Practice for
Telecommunications Service Contracts
(the Industry Code)

On 2 February 2010, we issued a voluntary “Code of Practice
for Communications Service Contracts” to protect consumers’
interest and address consumer complaints on contractual
matters for communications services. The code of practice
aims to provide guidelines for the industry in drawing up
communications service contracts on a voluntary compliance
basis. Having made reference to our code of practice, CAHK,
an industry body, promulgated a self-regulatory Industry Code
in December 2010.

With effect from July 2011, all major fixed and mobile network
operators and one major external telecommunications services
operator have implemented the necessary measures for
complying with the Industry Code. The implementation of the
Industry Code is a major achievement in the protection of
consumers’ interest. Personal or residential users are afforded
with better protection when they enter into a new contract or
renew their existing contracts. It also reflects that the Hong
Kong telecommunications industry attaches a great deal of
importance to protecting consumers’ interest and is making
enormous efforts to reduce consumer complaints and disputes

in relation to contractual matters.

We will closely monitor the implementation of the Industry Code

and maintain a close dialogue with the industry.

Code for the Provision of Chargeable Mobile
Content Services (the MCS Code)

Working closely with the industry, we have drawn up a voluntary
MCS Code to protect consumers’ interest and increase the
transparency of the charging information of Mobile Content
Service (MCS). The MCS Code governs the practices of
third party Content Service Providers (CSP) in providing
the MCS and the setting up of an industry self-regulatory
scheme. It was promulgated and put into effect by CAHK on
11 January 2010. The MCS Code requires all third-party CSPs
to clearly indicate to customers the chargeable nature of the
services, provide them with clear information on all charges,
obtain clear consent from them for using the MCS, and set
out clear and convenient unsubscription arrangements, before

commencing the provision of MCS.

In order to ensure compliance, the MCS Code provides for
the establishment of an Administrative Agency (AA), to be
responsible for assessing the capability of CSPs and securing
their pledges in complying with the requirements in the MCS
Code, and monitoring their compliance through random checks
and complaint handling on an ongoing basis. A mobile network
operator may only enter into a commercial contract with a CSP
which has obtained a Letter of Positive Assessment (LPA) from
the AA, on the delivery and billing services in respect of MCS. As
of the end March 2012, the AA has issued a total of 16 LPAs.

Since the adoption of the MCS Code, the number of related
complaints received by OFTA in 2011 has decreased by more
than 50% when compared with the number in 2010, reflecting
that the voluntary MCS Code is working positively to address

consumer concerns.
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Self-Regulatory Scheme for
Person-to-person Marketing Calls for the
Telecommunications Sector

With the assistance of CAHK, all major fixed and mobile
operators joined the self-regulatory scheme and published
their codes of practice on person-to-person marketing calls in

June 2011.

We have issued consumer tips to inform and educate
the public about the self-regulatory scheme set up by the
telecommunications sector so that members of the public may
know how to avoid receiving person-to-person marketing calls.
We will keep in view the implementation of the scheme in the

telecommunications sector.

Landing of New Submarine Cable
Systems in Hong Kong

During the year, we continued to provide a single-point-of-contact
service to the submarine cable system operators, assisting
in particular two operators in their applications for necessary
statutory approvals for the landing of two new submarine cable
systems, namely the Asia Submarine-Cable Express (ASE)
and the Southeast Asia Japan Cable (SJC), in Hong Kong.
The processing of the applications is progressing well with
active contribution from relevant Government departments
and parties. The installation works for the ASE and SJC wiill
commence later in 2012, and both systems are planned to be

ready for service in 2013.

In parallel, a new submarine cable landing station, representing
the seventh submarine cable landing station in Hong Kong,
is being built in Tseung Kwan O for the landing of the ASE.
This new station will not only increase Hong Kong’s overall
submarine cable landing station capacity, but will also enhance
the overall diversity of the landing stations. This, coupled with the
two new submarine cable systems, will further strengthen Hong
Kong’s position as the telecommunications and Internet hub for

the Asia-Pacific region.

Mobile TV Services

To enable the use of broadcast-type point-to-multipoint
technologies which deliver audio-visual content to a much
larger number of consumers, the radio spectrum in the
678 — 686 MHz band was auctioned in June 2010 for the
provision of broadcast-type mobile TV services. The services
were launched by the successful bidder in February 2012. As of
March 2012, the services covered more than 65% of the Hong
Kong population and can be received by a variety of mobile
devices supporting the China Mobile Multimedia Broadcasting

(CMMB) standard.

According to the relevant regulatory framework for the
development of broadcast-type mobile TV services, the content
of mobile TV, either local broadcast-type or streaming-type,
should be subject to regulations by general laws but not the
Broadcasting Ordinance. To enable self-regulation, the industry
is required to develop a code of practice on the provision
of mobile TV services. The code of practice would include
inter-alia the requirement of access control with a view to

protecting public morals and children.

The industry formulated the code of practice in March 2012,
which will become effective when the mobile TV service
provider puts in place the relevant access control measures for

pornographic content in August 2012,
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SUF for the Administratively-
assigned Spectrum

Promulgated by the Government in April 2007, the Radio
Spectrum Policy Framework stipulates that the SUF applies
in principle to all non-government uses of spectrum. The
objective of imposing the SUF on administratively-assigned
radio spectrum is to facilitate the most economical and socially
efficient use of radio spectrum in order to maximize benefits for
the community. Following a public consultation on the proposed
charging scheme that was completed in February 2011, the
Secretary for Commerce and Economic Development and TA
jointly issued a statement on the subject in September 2011.
Eight frequency bands used for fixed links, electronic news
gathering/outside broadcast links and satellite uplinks are
identified as congested bands and the use of spectrum in these
frequency bands will be subject to SUF payment. To implement
the scheme, the Government is making arrangements for the
necessary amendments to the subsidiary legislation under the
Telecommunications Ordinance.

Auction of the Radio Spectrum to
Enhance Development of Mobile
Services

On 11 November 2011, we published details of an auction for
the release of 90 MHz of radio spectrum in the 2.3 GHz band.
The auction was completed in February 2012 and the relevant
radio spectrum was successfully acquired by two existing
mobile network operators and a new entrant for a total SUF of
HK$470 million.

On 29 December 2011, we consulted the industry and
interested parties on the assignment of 50 MHz of radio
spectrum in the 2.5/2.6 GHz band for the further development
of 4G public mobile communications services in Hong Kong.
After considering the views and comments received from the
consultation, we will decide the detailed auction and licensing
arrangements for the assignment of the radio spectrum. If an
auction is to be conducted, it is expected to take place in the first
quarter of 2013.

3G Spectrum Review

At present, mobile data services are primarily provided through
3G spectrum in the 1.9 — 2.2 GHz band. The 2 x 60 MHz of

3G spectrum was assigned through auction to four mobile
network operators in October 2001, at 2 x 15 MHz each
for a tenure of 15 years. The four mobile network operators
providing 3G mobile services are CSL Limited, Hong Kong
Telecommunications (HKT) Limited, Hutchison Telephone
Company Limited and SmarTone Mobile Communications
Limited. All the 3G frequency assignments will expire on
21 October 2016.

According to the Radio Spectrum Policy Framework, there is
no legitimate expectation on the part of the operators that there
will be any right of renewal or right of first refusal of any licence
or frequency assignment upon its expiry. Furthermore, the TA
Statement issued in January 2008 requires that, insofar as it
is practicable in the circumstances, a notice period of not less
than three years would be given for variation or withdrawal of
spectrum assignment to carrier licences, i.e. in this case by
October 2013 at the latest.

To kick off the review process, the CEDB and OFTA jointly
launched a consultation in March 2012 to solicit views from the
industry and other interested parties on arrangements for the
frequency spectrum in the 1.9 — 2.2 GHz band upon the expiry
of the existing frequency assignments for 3G mobile services.
Three options were proposed in the consultation paper, with
the aim to ensuring efficient spectrum utilisation and customer
service continuity in an effectively competitive mobile market.
We plan to conduct two rounds of consultation on the way
forward.

Continuous Rollout of Digital
Terrestrial Television (DTT) Services

As its technical advisor, we provide technical assistance to
the Government on broadcasting matters and facilitate the
development of DTT services. As at December 2011, nine new
DTT transmitting stations located at Ap Lei Chau (Aberdeen),
Chiu Keng Wan Shan, Hill 275 (Lantau Island), Hill 297 (Yuen
Long), Kau Wa Keng, Pok Fu Lam, Sham Tseng, Tung Chung
and Ying Pun came into operation. Together with the other
20 DTT transmitting stations built before 2011, DTT service
covered over 96% of Hong Kong’s population in March 2012.

The broadcasters will continue to optimise their transmitting
network during 2012 and 2013 for further extension of the
service coverage.
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Launch of Service of Digital Audio
Broadcasting (DAB) Transmitting
Stations

In March 2011, the Chief Executive in Council granted sound
broadcasting licences to Digital Broadcasting Hong Kong
Limited, Metro Broadcast Corporation Limited and Phoenix U
Radio Limited to provide DAB services in Hong Kong. These
licensees share one Band Il multiplex with Radio Television
Hong Kong (RTHK) to provide a total of 18 DAB programme
channels. In March 2012, six principal DAB transmitting stations
located at Beacon Hill, Cloudy Hill, Golden Hill, Kowloon Peak,
Lamma Island and Mount Gough came into operation. The
remaining principal transmitting station at Castle Peak will
begin operation in May 2012. Trial broadcast of some of the
programme channels has already begun. The DAB operators
are planning for the construction of four additional fill-in stations
to improve the coverage and indoor reception.

Technical Support for Processing
Applications for New Domestic Free
TV Programme Service Licences

The BA has processed three applications for domestic
free television programme service licences from City
Telecom (HK) Limited, Fantastic Television Limited and HK
Television Entertainment Company Limited and submitted
recommendations to the Chief Executive in Council. We
assisted the BA in processing these applications by offering
advice on technical aspects.

Accreditation of Local Certification
Bodies for Testing and Certification
of Telecommunications Equipment

To keep in pace with international best practices,
commencing 1 October 2009, the testing and certification
services for telecommunications equipment, which were
previously provided by us, were transferred to qualified
local testing laboratories (LTLs). LTLs accredited by the TA
as local certification bodies (LCBs) can offer a full range of
telecommunications equipment testing and certification
services. By March 2012, we have accredited a total of five
LCBs to provide telecommunications equipment testing and
certification services in Hong Kong. The price control on fee
set by LCBs was lifted in October 2011 following a review in
early 2011 in order to allow for more effective competition in the
provision of testing and certification services.

To ensure that all LCBs providing telecommunications
equipment testing and certification services meet the service
quality and performance standards prescribed by OFTA, we
will continue to closely monitor the performance of LCBs by
conducting documentary checks, plant visits and reviews on
a regular basis. So far all LCBs have been performing up to
OFTA’s standard.

Technical Specifications for
Telecommunications Equipment

We are constantly monitoring international developments
in telecommunications standardisation and updating local
technical standards in order to meet the needs of the industry
and the public. In 2011/12, a total of 30 papers were issued
to consult the industry on matters related to standardisation,
and 11 new or revised technical standards were approved and
issued by the TA.
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Investigating Misleading or
Deceptive Conduct

During the period of 1 April 2011 to 31 March 2012, we
handled 49 complaint cases under section 7M of the
Telecommunications Ordinance, which prohibits misleading or
deceptive conduct by telecommunications licensees. Three of
these complaint cases were confirmed as infringements of the
Telecommunications Ordinance with financial penalties ranging
from HK$80,000 to HK$120,000 imposed on the offenders.

Investigating Anti-competitive
Conduct

During the period of 1 April 2011 to 31 March 2012, we
handled one complaint under sections 7K, 7L or 7N of the
Telecommunications Ordinance, which prohibit anti-competitive
conduct by telecommunications licensees. After due
consideration, no investigation was opened on the case. During
the same period, we also considered one case under section
7P of the Telecommunications Ordinance, which regulates
merger and acquisition activities involving a carrier licensee, and
concluded that no regulatory concern was raised under section
7P.

Procedures on Investigating
Anti-competitive and Misleading or
Deceptive Conduct

We carried out a consultation in January 2012 on the review of
the existing procedures for handling complaints under sections
7K, 7L and 7N of the Telecommunications Ordinance and the
provisions under section 7M. Having considered the views
and comments received from the consultation, the revised

procedures were promulgated in March 2012,

CCSS

We issued a statement in March 2012 setting out the
TA’s conclusion concerning the introduction of a CCSS

as an alternative dispute resolution mechanism to handle

telecommunications service disputes outside the judicial
system. Having conducted a public consultation in 2010 and
as a result of further discussion with the telecommunications
industry, we supported the implementation of a CCSS with
voluntary participation by operators with a two-year trial period.
The voluntary CCSS has received widespread support from
all the major telecommunications service providers and it aims
at providing a quick, effective and economical way to resolve
deadlock cases of biling disputes between telecommunications

service providers and their residential/personal customers.

CAHK, who represents the stakeholders in the communications
industry, has indicated willingness to act as a CCSS agent
to manage and operate the CCSS. We will sponsor the
voluntary CCSS by providing the necessary funding and other
administrative support to the CCSS agent to ensure the effective
running of the scheme. Subject to further discussion with
CAHK on the implementation arrangements, our target is to
commence the trial of CCSS in the second half of 2012. After
the two-year trial period, the effectiveness of the CCSS and
the public demand for it will be assessed in deciding the way

forward.

Proposed Amendments to the Trade
Descriptions Ordinance (TDO)

In February 2012, the Government introduced the Trade
Descriptions (Unfair Trade Practices) (Amendment) Bill
2012 (the Bill) into the Legislative Council to further protect
consumers against unfair trade practices. The Bill proposes
amendment of the TDO (Cap. 362) by expanding the scope
of prohibited unfair trade practices to cover services and
enhancing the enforcement regime. While the Customs and
Excise Department (C&ED), which currently enforces the
TDO, will be tasked to enforce the proposed new offences,
the TA (and the CA which will take over the powers of the

TA) will be given concurrent jurisdiction under the amended
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TDO in respect of unfair trade practices relating to the
provision of telecommunications services. It is also proposed
in the Bill that upon commencement of the new unfair trade
practices provisions in the amended TDO, section 7M of the
Telecommunications Ordinance, which prohibits misleading
or deceptive conduct of telecommunications licensees, will be

repealed, subject to transitional arrangements.

In view of the concurrent jurisdiction to enforce the new
consumer protection provisions, we have been closely
coordinating with the CEDB and C&ED in preparation for the
implementation of the new provisions upon passage by the
Legislative Council. OFCA will continue with the work involved

following the establishment of the CA.

Collaborative Action for the
Introduction of the Cross-sector
Competition Law

In July 2010, the Government introduced the Competition
Bill, which calls for a cross-sector competition law prohibiting
anti-competitive conduct in all sectors which has the object or
effect of preventing, restricting or distorting competition, into
the Legislative Council. According to the proposal, the TA (and
the CA which will take over the powers of the TA) would be
given concurrent jurisdiction to enforce the new competition
law in relation to telecommunications licensees, including
merger and acquisition activities involving carrier licensees.
Subject to transitional arrangements, the existing sector-specific
competition provisions in the Telecommunications Ordinance

will be repealed upon enactment of the Competition Bill.

In view of the concurrent jurisdiction to enforce the new
cross-sector competition law, we have been coordinating
closely with the CEDB in respect of all preparatory works
required for its implementation. With the establishment of the
CA, OFCA will continue the work with the responsible policy
bureau and the Competition Commission to be set up under the

new law.

Progress of Registration Scheme for
Buildings with Optical Fibre Access
Networks

We launched a voluntary registration scheme for buildings
with optical fibre access networks in 2010. As at March 2012,
11,800 residential buildings were recorded on the database
of the scheme and the owners of the registered buildings are
authorised to use the fibre-to-the-building or fibre-to-the-home

labels issued by us.

Launch of Data Usage Calculator

The mobile data service market in Hong Kong has been growing
rapidly in recent years. In order to help consumers manage
their data usage efficiently, we have developed a data usage
calculator on our website for public access. The calculator
serves as a tool for mobile service users to estimate the amount

of data usage that they may require per month.
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Broadband Performance Test
System

We have launched a broadband performance test system in
December 2010 to enable broadband service users to measure
the performance of their broadband connections including
download and upload speeds, network latency, packet
loss and jitter. Apart from users with desktop and notebook
computers, users of smartphones and tablets of Apple’s iOS
and Google’s Android operating systems may also make use of
the test system. From service launch to March 2012, more than

nine million tests were performed over this system.

Enforcement of the Unsolicited
Electronic Messages Ordinance
(UEMO)

Do-Not-Call (DNC) Registers

The UEMO came into force on 22 December 2007. Under the
UEMO, we have established three DNC Registers for facsimile
messages, short messages and pre-recorded telephone
messages. Commercial electronic messages must not be sent
to these registered numbers, unless the senders have obtained
consent from the registered users. By March 2012, more than
2.32 million numbers had been registered onto these three DNC
Registers. In addition to the requirements related to the DNC
Registers, senders of commercial electronic messages are also
required to comply with a number of sending rules. For example,
they must provide their contact information and an “unsubscribe

facility” in their commercial electronic messages.

In 2010/11 and 2011/12, the total number of reports received
in relation to suspected contraventions of UEMO dropped to
3,025 and 2,613 respectively. This represents a decrease in the
number of reported cases by around 40% and 14% respectively
on a year-on-year basis. This downward trend is probably due
to a better understanding by the telemarketing industry of the
requirements under the UEMO, and a growing awareness of
consumers of their rights under the UEMO. We will continue to
closely monitor the compliance of the senders with these rules

and streamline the procedures for more effective enforcement.

Enforcement

In dealing with reports of suspected contraventions of the
UEMO, we may issue advisory or warning letters. If the number
of reports received against a sender is below a certain threshold,
we will issue an advisory letter to the sender, requiring it to
observe the requirements under the UEMO. If the reports
received exceed the threshold or we continue to receive reports
against the same sender after the issuance of an advisory letter,
we will conduct a formal investigation and may issue a warning

letter.

In2011/12, a total of 364 advisory or warning letters were issued
whereas in 2010/11, the total number of advisory or warning
letters issued was 528. In the event of repeated contraventions
by the senders of commercial electronic messages, we may
consider issuing enforcement notices directing the sender to
take steps to remedy the offences. Anyone who fails to comply
with the enforcement notice may be liable to a fine of up to
HK$100,000 on the first conviction. In 2011/12, we have issued
eight enforcement notices, whereas in 2010/11, there was one

enforcement notice issued.
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Consumer Education Programmes

A publicity campaign was launched in July 2011 along with the
implementation of the Industry Code for telecommunications
service contracts. The campaign aims at raising the public
awareness of the enhanced protection that they are entitled to
under the Industry Code, and consists of a series of activities
including press briefing, broadcast of one-minute mini TV series,
short videos, TV and radio APIs, organisation of public seminars,
school talks and roving exhibitions, publication of newspaper
consumer advice columns and posters. The campaign reached
all target groups including students, the media and the general

public.

A series of roving exhibitions named “Be a Smart User of
Telecommunications Services” was organised from October
2011 to March 2012 to further heighten public awareness in
this regard. Eight roving exhibitions were held at Lok Fu Plaza,

Discovery Park Shopping Arcade, Tung Chung and Causeway

Bay MTR stations, Wan Chai Revenue Tower, Shatin and
Cheung Sha Wan Government Offices and Kowloon Park.
Topics covered at the exhibitions included the Industry Code,
“mobile bill shock”, registration scheme for buildings with optical
fibre access network, the FUP Guidelines, data usage calculator
and broadband performance test system. Apart from the display
of informative exhibition panels, the exhibitions also featured
the broadcast of short videos and TV APIs and interesting quiz

games.

In view of the continued public concerns on “mobile bill shock”,
a new round of consumer education campaign was launched in
the second half of 2011. Activities included the broadcast of TV
APIs and educational short videos at various media channels,
and the organisation of 13 public talks targeting the general
public and secondary school students. With the publicity efforts
and other regulatory measures that we have undertaken (please
refer to Chapter 4), we have witnessed the gradual decrease of

the number of complaints on “mobile bill shock”.
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A series of consumer education programmes under the theme “Be a Smart User of Telecommunications Services” are launched to enhance

consumer knowledge in this regard.
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More than 70 representatives from the APT, overseas
telecommunications regulators and mobile operators participated
in the APT Workshop on International Mobile Roaming held in June
2011.
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Participation in International and
Regional Conferences

Over the years, we have taken an active part in the activities of,
and maintained close contact with, various international and
regional organisations, particularly by participating in relevant

telecommunications conferences and fora around the world.

In 2011/12, we attended a total of 27 conferences hosted
by regional and international organisations including the
International Telecommunication Union (ITU), the Asia-Pacific
Economic Cooperation (APEC), the Asia-Pacific Telecommunity
(APT), the Organisation for Economic Co-operation and
Development (OECD) and the International Institute of

Communications (IIC).

Assuming the role of Chairman in the APT Working Group on
International Mobile Roaming (IMR), we have been working
closely with APT members to conduct in-depth studies on
various aspects of mobile roaming. The working group is tasked
to develop guidelines and to make recommendations relating to

high mobile roaming charges in mid 2012.

In addition to participating in the activities of the APEC
Telecommunications and Information Working Group (APEC
TEL) which aim to improve the telecommunications and
information infrastructure in the Asia-Pacific region, we have
also taken up the chairmanship of the APEC TEL Mutual
Recognition Arrangement Task Force from May 2010 to
September 2011. The purpose of the task force is to foster
the implementation of existing arrangements and develop new
mutual recognition arrangements for conformity assessments of

telecommunications equipment in the APEC markets.

APT Conferences

We hosted the APT Workshop on IMR from 13 to 15 June
2011 in Hong Kong. The objective of the workshop was to
engage APT members and regulators through presentations,
information sharing and round-tables, in the discussion of the
IMR issues, with a particular emphasis on reducing the high IMR
costs in the region. Over 70 participants from the APT, overseas
telecommunications regulators and mobile operators attended

the workshop.

Exchanges with Authorities
in the Mainland and Overseas
Administrations

In the past year, we received five delegations from different
parts of the world to exchange views and experiences on
various issues relating to regulations of telecommunications
services. These included delegations from the Communications
and Information Technology Commission of Saudi Arabia,
the Infocomm Development Authority (IDA) of Singapore, the
National ICT Authority of Papua New Guinea, the National
Broadcasting and Telecommunications Commission and the

Chulalongkorn University of Thailand.

During the year, we held annual bi-lateral meetings with the
IDA of Singapore, Bureau of Telecommunication Regulations of
Macao and the Guangdong Communications Administration.
Courtesy visits were also paid to the Ministry of Industry and
Information Technology of the Mainland and the Office of

Communications in the United Kingdom.
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A lunch reception was held in March 2012 for members of the five
advisory committees to thank them for their contribution.
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We have continued to support the Mountaineering Safety Promotion
Day to promote hiking safety for the fifth consecutive year.



Media and Community Relations

We take an active role in keeping the public informed of our
work. In the past year, we conducted three media briefings
and issued eight press releases on subjects relating to the
TA’s major decisions and OFTA’s major initiatives and events.
The Director-General of Telecommunications published two
articles in major local newspapers elaborating on our views on
telecommunications issues. The speeches and presentations
that she and other senior OFTA staff members made at public
seminars and industry conferences were also published on our
website. This has helped in disseminating our messages to the

industry and the public.

Mountaineering Safety Promotion Day

For the fifth consecutive year, we have continued to support
the Mountaineering Safety Promotion Day organised by the
Civil Aid Service to promote hiking safety in October 2011.
Featuring informative exhibition panels, interesting games,
digital maps showing the mobile network coverage of hiking
trails in country parks, and onsite demonstrations on the use of
communications devices, our booth has successfully attracted

thousands of visitors and coverage from the media.

Telecommunications Activities
Sponsored by OFTA

In the year under review, we sponsored the World
Telecommunication and Information Society Day 2011
organised by CAHK. The purpose of this campaign was to raise
the awareness of information and communications technology

development among young people in Hong Kong.

We have also sponsored the Safe WiFi Campaign organised
by the Hong Kong Wireless Technology Industry Association
for four consecutive years. The campaign aims to enhance
public awareness of WiFi security through conducting
district-wide WiFi security surveys, organising seminars and

publishing special pages in the newspaper.

The Work of Advisory Committees
We have established a total of five advisory committees, namely:

e the Radio Spectrum Advisory Committee;

e the Telecommunications Numbering Advisory
Committee;

e the Technical Standards Advisory Committee;

e the Telecommunications Users and Consumers
Advisory Committee; and

e the Regulatory Affairs Advisory Committee.

We work closely with these five advisory committees to
ensure the efficient and effective operations of OFTA. These
advisory committees, comprising members of the public, user
groups, industry players, representatives of trade associations,
academics and relevant Government departments, provide
advice and a broader view of the industry while also representing
community interests. In response to the advent of new
technologies and higher expectations from the public, we will
continue to take heed of the views and comments collected

from these committees.

To ensure transparency, we post the agenda, minutes and
discussion papers of all advisory committee meetings, as well
as those of the working groups under their auspices, on our

website for public viewing.
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A Dedicated and Versatile Workforce

To embrace challenges of the rapidly developing
telecommunications sector, we have all along taken a dynamic
and integrated approach to human resource management
and strategic manpower planning. Regular reviews of the
organisational structure and staffing levels are conducted
to ensure optimum deployment of resources to cope with
changing priorities and to provide the best possible services to

the community.

As at 31 March 2012, we had an overall staff strength of 327,
just slightly higher than 325 a year ago, comprising 202 civil

servants and 125 employed on non-civil service contract terms.

Training and Development

We are committed to providing our staff members at all levels
with a wide range of training opportunities in order to enhance
their professional skills, to strengthen their management and
leadership capabilities, and to keep pace with the advent of new
technologies. In 2011/12, a host of training programmes were
provided for staff members, including vocational and technical
training, management and leadership programmes, as well as

language, communication and national studies courses.

In addition to local training programmes, we continued to
sponsor staff members to attend training in the Mainland
China and abroad, including Beijing, the United Kingdom, the
United States, Australia, Malaysia and the Republic of Korea,
to enhance their professional skills. A variety of local courses
and in-house training programmes were also conducted to
update staff members on specific subjects such as prosecution,
computer forensics, competition law, statistics, information
technology, integrity management, personal data management
and impact assessment. The trainee count for the year was 462

and the count for training man-days was 615.

Awards and Commendations

In recognition of staff members’ meritorious achievements
and exemplary performance, a work team was awarded the
Director-General’s Commendation for Meritorious Service. In
addition, eight staff members received the Director-General’s
Commendation for Long and Valuable Service, 23 received
the Long and Meritorious Service Award and two received the
Long and Meritorious Service Travel Award. During the year,
one suggestion to improve work efficiency also received award

under the Staff Suggestion Scheme.

Recreational Activities and Volunteer
Services

To promote work-life balance and to cultivate stronger ties
among colleagues, we organise staff recreational activities on
a regular basis. During the year, staff members took part in
a variety of activities including outings, recreational classes,
luncheon talks, sports activities and an annual departmental
dinner gathering. Colleagues also showed their care and
concern for the needy by taking part in a number of volunteer
and charity events. In recognition of our effort, the Hong Kong
Council of Social Service continued to award us with the “Caring

Organisation” logo for the fifth year in a row.
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Financial Results 2011/12

2011/12 was a good year for OFTA Trading Fund. With a
significant growth in licence fee revenue and our continuous
effort in containing operating costs, we were able to deliver
solid results in 2011/12. The pre-tax profit rose to HK$137.4
million from HK$106.4 million a year ago and the rate of return
on average net fixed assets increased to 48.8% from 44.7% in
2010/11.

The total revenue at HK$411.6 million surpassed last year’s
HK$355.8 million primarily due to the higher licence fee revenue
and interest income.

The total expenditure increased to HK$274.2 million from last
year’'s HK$249.4 million mainly due to higher staff costs and
legal expenses.

Other income (included mainly interest income) increased to
HK$40.3 million from HK$13.4 million in 2011/12. The average
interest yield was at 3.6% vis-a-vis last year’s 1.1%. The
increase in interest yield was primarily due to a placement with
the Exchange Fund made during the period.

Looking ahead, with a strong statement of financial position and
a dedicated and professional team, we are well placed to face
the coming challenges.
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Financial Results 2011/12

Highlights of the financial performance:

2011/12 2010/11
BEBT BEBTT
HK$’'m HK$'m
WA Revenue 411.6 355.8
i Expenditure 274.2 249.4
i A & Pre-tax profit 137.4 106.4
BB S Proposed dividend 115.2 90.2
& E & E ¥ FER R Return on ANFA 48.8% 44.7%
A AR &
Licence fees
Revenue 84.6% (90.5%)
R E

* REEANA2010 11 EEHT

X

Expenditure

In parentheses are 2010/11 figures

Service charges

5.5% (5.4%)
FEMA KRB BRAME L FEE
Interest income & net

realised and revaluation losses
9.6% (3.6%)

HMIEUA
Miscellaneous revenue
0.3% (0.5%)

BT

Staff

80.6% (81.0%)
giE

Operation
14.0% (13.3%)

e Ry
Depreciation &
amortisation
3.7% (4.5%)

S
Consultancy
1.7% (1.2%)
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Report of the Director of Audit

Audit Commission
The Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region

Independent Audit Report
To the Legislative Council

| certify that | have examined and audited the financial statements of
the Office of the Communications Authority Trading Fund (formerly
known as Office of the Telecommunications Authority Trading Fund)
set out on pages 51 to 79, which comprise the statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2012, and the statement of comprehensive
income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

General Manager, Office of the
Communications Authority Trading Fund’s
Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The General Manager, Office of the Communications Authority
Trading Fund is responsible for the preparation of financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with section
7(4) of the Trading Funds Ordinance (Cap. 430) and Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as the
General Manager, Office of the Communications Authority Trading
Fund determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on my audit. | conducted my audit in accordance
with section 7(5) of the Trading Funds Ordinance and the Audit
Commission auditing standards. Those standards require that |
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free from material misstatement.
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Report of the Director of Audit

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair
view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the General
Manager, Office of the Communications Authority Trading Fund, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion.

Opinion

In my opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Office of the Communications Authority Trading
Fund as at 31 March 2012, and of its results of operations and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the manner provided in section 7(4) of the Trading
Funds Ordinance.

o/

LAU Sun-wo

Assistant Director of Audit
for Director of Audit

Audit Commission

26th Floor, Immigration Tower
7 Gloucester Road

Wanchai, Hong Kong

26 September 2012
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BREXEERHAEEERES Office of the Communications Authority Trading Fund

(FIBENEEREEES) (formerly known as Office of the Telecommunications Authority Trading Fund)
22 -
2HkE R Statement of Comprehensive Income
EZ20124F 3 A 31 HIFF/E for the year ended 31 March 2012
(LCEMF Tz T) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong doliars)
BisE 2012 2011
Note
L Turnover 3 371,362 342,364
BIERAR Operating costs 4 (274,169) (249,440
EEEF Profit from operations 97,193 92,924
HAn A Other income 5 40,253 13,430
ZENEHARA Profit before notional profits tax 137,446 106,354
BERMNEHR Notional profits tax 6 (22,222) (16,161)
FEEF Profit for the year 115,224 90,193
Hin2E s Other comprehensive income - -
FEHZEKZ Total comprehensive income for the year 115,224 90,193
Ehh=§-JEE A Rate of return on fixed assets 7 48.8% 44.7%

E 5279 BRI A FE#RZA) —555 ©  The notes on pages 55 to 79 form part of these financial statements.
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BREXEERRAEEEES Office of the Communications Authority Trading Fund

(FIEENEEREEES) (formerly known as Office of the Telecommunications Authority Trading Fund)
v - - g
HF FE AR 3% Statement of Financial Position
R20124#3H31 H as at 31 March 2012
(LCEMF Tz T) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
BisE 2012 2011
Note
ERBEE Non-current assets
mE - BEREM Property, plant and equipment 8 162,829 167,083
BVEE Intangible assets 9 1,525 1,149
INEESFR Placement with the Exchange Fund 10 722,241 -
886,595 168,232
RBEE Current assets
FEUIRESR - & & RIENRIE Debtors, deposits and advance payments 5,559 2,638
eI B A IR Amounts due from related parties - 1,285
JE U R 2, Interest receivable 11,669 8,258
RITIFR Bank deposits 369,800 1,043,700
Re RIRITHESR Cash and bank balances 12,122 125,353
399,150 1,181,234
RBEE Current liabilities
[ERTIRF R ES B Creditors and accruals 10,359 156,306
EERFIRE Provision for employee benefits 12 7,327 5,510
FETRAE A TR Amounts due to related parties 21 23,328 18,855
ELEWA Deferred income 13 143,290 101,754
JERBEFEH Notional profits tax payable 12,376 6,824
196,680 289,249
REEEFE Net current assets 202,470 891,985
BEERERBARE Total assets less current liabilities 1,089,065 1,060,217
*RBaRE Non-current liabilities
BRI R Deferred tax 11 1,239 1,096
EERFIRE Provision for employee benefits 12 70,037 66,363
71,276 67,459
FEE NET ASSETS 1,017,789 992,758
ERERE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
EEEGER Trading fund capital 14 212,400 212,400
BRHH Development reserve 15 690,165 690,165
REBRF Retained earnings 16 - -
BERE Proposed dividend 17 115,224 90,193
1,017,789 992,758

E 5279 BRI AL A —555 - The notes on pages 55 to 79 form part of these financial statements.

'\_,v_,\/(/\./\l
Mg EZt Miss Eliza Lee
BAEKEERMRAZE General Manager,
HERASRKE Office of the Communications Authority Trading Fund
201249 A 26H 26 September 2012
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BREXEERHAEEERES Office of the Communications Authority Trading Fund

(FIBENEEREEES) (formerly known as Office of the Telecommunications Authority Trading Fund)
3z . .

LB ER Statement of Changes in Equity
EZ20124F 3 A 31 HIFF/E for the year ended 31 March 2012
(LCEMF Tz T) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong doliars)

2012 2011
FOEEH Balance at beginning of year 992,758 1,001,102
FER2AEKZ Total comprehensive income for the year 115,224 90,193
FREMNEKRE Dividend paid during the year (90,193) (98,537)
FREER Balance at end of year 1,017,789 992,758

E 5279 BRI A FE#RZA) —555 - The notes on pages 55 to 79 form part of these financial statements.
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BREXEERPRAEZEES Office of the Communications Authority Trading Fund

(FIBEREEREERES)

BERER

(formerly known as Office of the Telecommunications Authority Trading Fund)

Statement of Cash Flows

EF 201243731 HIFFE for the year ended 31 March 2012
(LCEMF Tz T) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong doliars)
i E 2012 2011
Note
EEBACRERE Cash flows from operating activities
BIERA Profit from operations 97,193 92,924
AW Sundry income 864 620
ME - REREMITE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 9,756 10,147
B EESE Amortisation of intangible assets 488 1,158
FEWIRFR ~ 22 RIBHT (Increase)/Decrease in debtors,
FIB (), m deposits and advance payments (2,921) 3,434
U B A IR Decrease/(Increase) in amounts due
w4 ) from related parties 1,285 (1,229)
[ERIR R R ES B (Decrease)/Increase in creditors
CRA)/Hm and accruals (146,444) 137,434
JE 1 BB A TR R Increase/(Decrease) in amounts
/i) due to related parties 4,283 219)
EEUWALE A, CRid) Increase/(Decrease) in deferred income 41,536 (3,352)
EERFIBEIL M Increase in provision for employee benefits 5,491 4,726
[RENEE-FAES ) Notional profits tax paid (16,528) (18,883)
SEEE (FTA),/ i Net cash (used in)/from operating activities
HEFE (4,997) 226,760
REBEZEERE Cash flows from investing activities
HNEE S TFRIEM Increase in placement with the Exchange Fund (722,241) -
REHRA=MEAUL Decrease in structured deposits with original
MEBETFRD maturity over three months - 72,000
REMBER=MEANUL Decrease in bank deposits with original
HYIRIT 17 BUR maturity over three months 319,600 257,800
HEWE  REREN Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
REREE and intangible assets (5,692) (1,422)
HEME « REREV Net proceeds from disposal of property,
FT8 3 e plant and equipment 51 25
B U F S Interest received 35,941 23,327
REBAB (FiA)/FB Net cash (used in)/from investing activities
RERHE (372,341) 351,730
MEBEEZHESRE Cash flows from financing activities
RS Dividend paid (90,193) (98,537)
MEBEFMARLFE Net cash used in financing activities (90,193) (98,537)
ReRERAESHN Net (decrease)/increase in cash and
(RD),/EmEeE cash equivalents (467,531) 479,953
FNNRERERTE Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 486,653 6,700
FRNESRERES Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 18 19,122 486,653

FO5 279 RMMIAE B FREH 5

The notes on pages 55 to 79 form part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Amount expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated.)

1. General

The Office of the Telecommunications Authority (OFTA) Trading
Fund was established on 1 June 1995 under the Legislative Council
Resolution passed on 10 May 1995 pursuant to sections 3, 4 and 6
of the Trading Funds Ordinance (Cap. 430). The OFTA Trading Fund
served as the executive arm of the Telecommunications Authority
who was appointed under the Telecommunications Ordinance
(Cap.106) as the statutory body responsible for regulating the
telecommunications industry. The OFTA Trading Fund was under the
policy portfolio of the Commerce and Economic Development Bureau
of the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
(the Government). The principal activities undertaken by the OFTA
Trading Fund included:

(@ overseeing the regulation and licensing of public telecommunications
services;

(b) managing Hong Kong’s radio frequency spectrum;

(c) providing advisory and planning services to the public

sector, and rendering technical support in the regulation of
broadcasting services;

(d) overseeing technical standards and international affairs; and

(e) ensuring the enforcement of fair competition and providing
advisory services to the Government on broadcasting
competition policy and legislation.

On 1 April 2012, the Communications Authority Ordinance (Cap.
616) came into operation. By virtue of section 25 of the ordinance,
the OFTA Trading Fund was renamed as the Office of the
Communications Authority Trading Fund (the Fund) on the same
date.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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2.

(a)

(b)
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(Amount expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated.)

2.

(a)

(b)

Significant accounting policies
Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(HKFRSs), a collective term which includes all applicable
individual HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(HKASSs) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA). A summary of the
significant accounting policies adopted by the Fund is set out
below.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is historical cost except that trading
financial instruments are stated at their fair values as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and various other factors that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis for making judgements about
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

There are no critical accounting judgements involved in the
application of the Fund’s accounting policies. There are
also no key assumptions concerning the future, or other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the next year.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Amount expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated.)

2.

(c)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Fixed assets

The fixed assets appropriated to the Fund on 1 June 1995
were measured initially at deemed cost equal to the value
contained in the Resolution of the Legislative Council passed
on 10 May 1995. Fixed assets acquired since 1 June 1995 are
capitalised at the actual costs of acquisition or installation.

Property, plant and equipment

The following items of property, plant and equipment
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses (note 2(d)):

— land classified as held under a finance lease and
building held for own use situated thereon;

— plant and equipment, including telecommunications
equipment, computer systems, furniture, fixtures
and motor vehicles.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

— Land classified as held under a finance lease
depreciated over the unexpired term of lease

— Buildings situated on leasehold land depreciated
over the shorter of the unexpired term of lease and
their useful lives

— Telecommunications equipment 5to 12 years

— Computer systems 5 years
— Furniture and fixtures 5 years
— Motor vehicles 5 years

Gains or losses arising from the disposal of property,
plant and equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and are recognised in the
statement of comprehensive income on the date of
disposal.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Amount expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated.)

2.

(c)

(d)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Fixed assets (continued)

(i

Intangible assets

Intangible assets include acquired computer
software licences and capitalised development
costs of computer software programs. Expenditure
on development of computer software programs is
capitalised if the programs are technically feasible
and the Fund has sufficient resources and intention to
complete development. The expenditure capitalised
includes direct labour and cost of materials.
Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any impairment losses (note 2(d)).

Amortisation of intangible assets is charged to the
statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line
basis over the assets’ estimated useful lives of 5 to 12
years.

Impairment of fixed assets

The carrying amounts of fixed assets, including property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets, are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period to identify any indication of
impairment.

If any such indication exists, an impairment loss is recognised
in the statement of comprehensive income whenever the
carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair
value less costs to sell and value in use.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Amount expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated.)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities

(i)

(i

Initial recognition

The Fund classifies its financial assets and financial
liabilities into different categories at inception, depending
on the purpose for which the assets were acquired or
the liabilities were incurred. The categories are: trading
financial instruments, loans and receivables, and other
financial liabilities.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are measured
initially at fair value, which normally equals to the
transaction prices plus transaction costs for loans
and receivables, and other financial liabilities that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial
assets or issue of the financial liabilities. Transaction
costs on trading financial instruments are expensed
immediately.

The Fund recognises financial assets and financial
liabilities on the date it becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Regular way
purchases and sales of financial assets are accounted
for at settlement date.

Categorisation
Trading financial instruments

The Fund does not acquire financial instruments
for the purpose of trading. However, embedded
derivatives that are separated from the host contracts
(note 2(e)(iv)) are categorised as “trading” under
HKAS 39, “Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement”.

Trading financial instruments are carried at fair value.
Changes in fair value are recognised in the statement
of comprehensive income in the period in which they
arise.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Amount expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated.)

2.

(e)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

(i

Categorisation (continued)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market and which the Fund has
no intention of trading. This category includes debtors,
amounts due from related parties, interest receivable,
placement with the Exchange Fund, structured
deposits, bank deposits and cash and bank balances.

Loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method less impairment
losses, if any (note 2(e)(v)).

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial
liability and of allocating the interest income or interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts or payments through the expected
life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate,
a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset or financial liability. When calculating
the effective interest rate, the Fund estimates cash
flows considering all contractual terms of the financial
instruments but does not consider future credit losses.
The calculation includes all fees received or paid
between parties to the contract that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
all other premiums or discounts.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities are carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Amount expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated.)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

(i)

(iv)

Derecognition

A financial asset is derecognised when the contractual
rights to receive the cash flows from the financial
asset expire, or where the financial asset together with
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
have been transferred.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled, or
when it expires.

Embedded derivatives

An embedded derivative is a component of a
hybrid (combined) instrument that includes both the
derivative and a host contract with the effect that some
of the cash flows of the combined instrument vary in a
way similar to a stand-alone derivative.

An embedded derivative is separated from the host
contract and accounted for as a derivative when (a) the
economic characteristics and risks of the embedded
derivative are not closely related to those of the host
contract; and (b) the hybrid (combined) instrument
is not measured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income. Where the embedded derivative is separated,
the host contract is accounted for according to its
category (note 2(e)(ii)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Amount expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated.)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(e) Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

V)

Impairment of financial assets

The carrying amounts of loans and receivables are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
determine whether there is objective evidence of
impairment. If any such evidence exists, an impairment
loss is recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective
interest rate. If in a subsequent period, the amount of
such impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be linked objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised, the impairment loss
is reversed through the statement of comprehensive
income.

(f) Notional profits tax

(M

(i

The Fund has no tax liability under the Inland Revenue
Ordinance (Cap.112). However, the Government
requires the Fund to pay to the General Revenue an
amount in lieu of profits tax (i.e. notional profits tax)
calculated on the basis of the provisions of the Inland
Revenue Ordinance. Notional profits tax expense for
the year comprises current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect
of previous years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Amount expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated.)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(f) Notional profits tax (continued)

(iii)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from
unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

All deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the assets can be
utilised, are recognised.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amounts of the assets or
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow the
related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such deduction
is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available.

(g) Revenue recognition

(M

(i

Licence fees received are credited to deferred income
and amortised to profit and loss over the validity
period of the licences. Service income is recognised
when services have been provided. Interest income
is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest
method.

Realised gains or losses on financial instruments are
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income
when the financial instruments are derecognised.
Changes in fair value of trading financial instruments
are recognised as revaluation gains or losses in the
statement of comprehensive income in the period in
which they arise.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2.

(9)

(h)

)]

(Amount expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated.)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)

(iii) Other income is recognised on an accrual basis.

Employee benefits

The employees of the Fund comprise civil servants and
contract staff. Salaries, staff gratuities, and annual leave
entitlements are accrued and recognised as expenditure in
the year in which the associated services are rendered by the
staff. For civil servants, staff on-costs, including pensions and
housing benefits provided to the staff by the Government, are
charged as expenditure in the year in which the associated
services are rendered.

For civil servants employed on pensionable terms, their
pension liabilities are discharged by reimbursement of the
staff on-cost charged by the Government. For other staff,
contributions to the Mandatory Provident Fund (MPF) Scheme
are charged to the statement of comprehensive income as
incurred.

Related parties

The Fund is a separate accounting entity within the
Government established under the Trading Funds Ordinance.
During the year, the Fund has entered into transactions
with various related parties, including government bureaux
and departments, trading funds and financially autonomous
bodies controlled or significantly influenced by the
Government, in the ordinary course of its business.

Foreign currency translation

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
into Hong Kong dollars using the spot exchange rates
at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in currencies other than Hong Kong dollars are
translated into Hong Kong dollars using the closing exchange
rate at the end of the reporting period. All foreign currency
translation differences are recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Amount expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated.)

2.

(k)

m

(m)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and bank balances,
and other short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three
months of maturity when placed or acquired.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when there is a legal or constructive obligation arising
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of
money is material, provisions are stated at the present value
of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Impact of new and revised HKFRSs

The HKICPA has issued a number of new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective for the current accounting period. There
have been no changes to the accounting policies applied in
these financial statements for the years presented as a result
of these developments. The Fund has not applied any new
standard that is not yet effective for the current accounting
period (note 25).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Amount expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated.)

3. XX 3. Turnover
2012 2011
BHEE Telecommunications licence fees

fRRR — 5 Licences - Private 36,744 35,383

RN SS Licences - Public 311,332 286,682
M E A TRHRS Services provided to related parties

(Mi3E21(a)) (Note 21(a)) 22,858 19,133
FEIEWA Miscellaneous revenue 428 1,166

371,362 342,364
4. BERAK 4. Operating costs
2012 2011
BT Staff costs

FeHEEME TRA Salaries and other staff costs 219,557 200,830

BRI MPF contributions 1,406 1,247
PR E T AR Accommodation costs 10,166 9,311
BER X Operating expenses 19,155 19,145
TR Administrative expenses 8,454 4,208
NS Consultancy fees 4,771 3,024
ME - BHE R Depreciation of property,

BMITE plant and equipment 9,756 10,147
mIVEESH Amortisation of intangible assets 488 1,158
EAHER Audit fees 416 370

274,169 249,440

OFFICE OF THE TELECOMMUNICATIONS AUTHORITY TRADING FUND REPORT 2011/12

66



BRI

Financial Results

B ER R Financial Statements

B RS R R I EE Notes to the Financial Statements
(BRI RSN - T % B LGB F Tzl » ) (Amount expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated.)
5. HftlA 5. Other income
2012 2011
JEA R FETIIRAY Interest income from financial assets
TREEMNFBWA not at fair value
INEE ST Placement with the Exchange Fund 32,297 -
HEETER Structured deposits - 976
RITFN Bank deposits 7,052 12,809
RITEEBR Bank balances 3 4
39,352 13,789
HEETERNENITE Net realised and revaluation losses
TANBEERM on derivatives embedded in
EHFEE structured deposits - (980)
B A Sundry income 901 621
40,253 13,430
6. BEFNEBH 6. Notional profits tax

(@) B2 TH U 5 2k A0 BR B9 42 2= RS B A (@)  The notional profits tax charged to the statement of

71 77

K comprehensive income is arrived at as follows:
2012 2011

AR Current tax
REEHE Provision for notional profits tax

ST B for the year 22,079 16,693
EER R Deferred tax
TFEEEN Origination and reversal of

EAERED temporary differences 143 (532)
BERANBH Notional profits tax 22,222 16,161
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6. BEHNBH &) 6. Notional profits tax (continued)
(b) MIEXHESHBMNRBEATEAED (o)  The reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit
HEMT - at applicable tax rate is as follows:
2012 2011

M5 T AT & A Profit before tax 137,446 106,354
BB BFEIHE16.5% (2011 F : 16.5%) Tax at Hong Kong profits tax rate

FTHEETIA of 16.5% (2011: 16.5%) 22,678 17,548
—GBRER 2011, /12 FEFHE One-off tax reduction in 2011/12 (12) -
A MB R IET & Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 726 888
FEERBMA MBI & Tax effect of non-taxable revenue (1,170) (2,275)
ERHIES M Actual tax expense 22,222 16,161
7. BEEEERFR 7. Rate of return on fixed assets
BrEENREENBRE2ENE (TRIEMNE The rate of return on fixed assets is calculated as total comprehensive
WA~ INERSTEROFBWABEHNEER income (excluding interest income, notional profits tax on interest
FIEH - FMEXHMERTRAENITETA income from placement with the Exchange Fund, interest expenses
MEERMEGF M BE) BRABETEE and net realised and revaluation gains/losses on derivatives
FHFEEMSNES X - BITEERREDE - embedded in structured deposits) divided by average net fixed
RERBEM URBFEE BV ERARE assets, and expressed as a percentage. Fixed assets include
o EHEEESNENNEFETEES property, plant and equipment and intangible assets. The Fund is
ZOMERAFTFES.5% (20114 : 8.5%) ° expected to meet a target rate of return on fixed assets of 8.5% per

year (2011: 8.5%) as determined by the Financial Secretary.
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8. W¥ REKRSEM 8. Property, plant and equipment

THREE ENRE EMRK HFAREE B Eak

Land Telecom- Furniture
and munications Computer and Motor
buildings  equipment systems fixtures vehicles Total

BA Cost
R2010F4 18 At 1 April 2010 220,243 49,677 35,470 32,059 3,281 340,730
NE Additions - 298 743 245 - 1,286
HE Adjustments - - 1 - 15 16
HE Disposals - (16) (104) (24) - (144)
2011463 A31H At 31 March 2011 220,243 49,959 36,110 32,280 3,296 341,888
R2011F4 /11 At 1 April 2011 220,243 49,959 36,110 32,280 3,296 341,888
NE Additions - 1,066 1,717 1,857 867 5,507
&/ Disposals - (21) (1,050) @ (378) (1,451)
R201263A831H At 31 March 2012 220,243 51,004 36,777 34,135 3,785 345,944
RiHiE Accumulated depreciation
R2010%F4 11 At 1 April 2010 59,977 39,442 31,445 31,171 2,751 164,786
FANE Charge for the year 4,849 2,879 1,877 428 114 10,147
HE Adjustments - - 1 - 15 16
HE /T iEm Written back on disposals - (16) (104) (24) - (144)
201143 A31H At 31 March 2011 64,826 42,305 33,219 31,575 2,880 174,805
R2011E4 /18 At 1 April 2011 64,826 42,305 33,219 31,575 2,880 174,805
FANE Charge for the year 4,849 2,914 1,368 465 160 9,756
L& /e Written back on disposals - (21) (1,045) ] (378) (1,446)
R2012F3H831H At 31 March 2012 69,675 45,198 33,542 32,038 2,662 183,115
1REFE Net book value
R2012F3H831H At 31 March 2012 150,568 5,806 3,235 2,097 1,123 162,829
R2011F3A31H At 31 March 2011 165,417 7,654 2,891 705 416 167,083
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9. EIEE

Notes to the Financial Statements

(Amount expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated.)
9. Intangible assets

ERBHERRAGHEER
Computer software licences
and system development costs

2012 2011
2% Cost
F1) At beginning of year 7,919 7,595
NE Additions 864 324
F K At end of year 8,783 7,919
EESg: § Accumulated amortisation
F4) At beginning of year 6,770 5,612
FREH Charge for the year 488 1,158
T4 At end of year 7,258 6,770
IR E FE Net book value
FR At end of year 1,525 1,149

10. SHEELER

INERSIFHREHRBTIE2,224.1 BT (2011
Fo|m) HR7EBTARBEGFER 2,224.1
EFETAREHPLERAC AREH KRR T
B ZERAH6F (RFXARE) - AT
BEIRENR BTN ©

INERESTFRFEREF1ABTHETE 8 X5t
H o ZERAESKREHEABACTFNTHFE
RERTR - LIFHINERESBELHE L —EFE
HFHFERZ  UREPReEA%E S TR
0% ° 2012 METE BEXBETF5.6% 2011
FAEF6.0% -

10. Placement with the Exchange Fund

The balance of the placement with the Exchange Fund amounted
to HK$722,241,000 (2011:HK$NIl), being the original placement
of HK$700,000,000 plus HK$22,241,000 interest paid but not
yet withdrawn at the end of the reporting period. The term of the
placement is six years from the date of placement, during which the
amount of original placement cannot be withdrawn.

Interest on the placement is payable at a fixed rate determined
every January. The rate is the average annual investment return of
the Exchange Fund’s Investment Portfolio for the past six years or
the average annual yield of three-year Exchange Fund Notes for the
previous year subject to a minimum of zero percent, whichever is the
higher. The interest rate has been fixed at 5.6% per annum for the
year 2012 and at 6.0% per annum for the year 2011.
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11, EEB 11. Deferred tax

EUBRARAERNELER T KRB ZREH Deferred tax recognised in the statement of financial position arises
TEREBHENITERTE HERNEHET| W from depreciation allowances in excess of the related depreciation

T and amortisation. The movements during the year are as follows:
2012 2011
FEERR Balance at beginning of year 1,096 1,628
REEW SRR Charged/(Credited) to statement of
(%) comprehensive income 143 (532)
FREER Balance at end of year 1,239 1,096
12. EERAERE 12. Provision for employee benefits

AENEREHERARMREENORES T This represents the estimated liability for employees’ annual leave and
EEFREAVEELRSHEAE - obligations on contract-end gratuities payable to contract staff for
services rendered up to end of the reporting period.

13. EZLEWA 13. Deferred income
AR ERS TSRS ENERERA This represents the balance of licence fee income to be amortised
Kk o over the remaining validity period of the licences.
14. EEESER 14. Trading fund capital
IABRNHEEESHIRE - This represents the Government’s investment in the Fund.

2012 2011
FUIRFREER Balance at beginning and end of year 212,400 212,400
15. BERE 15. Development reserve
ULERE T RIERERERE M - This is a reserve serving as a regulating mechanism to meet the target

return.

2012 2011

FUIRFREER Balance at beginning and end of year 690,165 690,165
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B IEER AR MIRE

(1IN - BT 2 BB A BT ITALST © )

16. REZEF

16. Retained earnings

2012 2011
FHEH Balance at beginning of year - -
Total comprehensive income
FREAEZE S for the year 115,224 90,193
R B Proposed dividend (115,224) (90,193)
FIRERR Balance at end of year - -

17. BERE

1) BT 30 A B R AR I 4F B 48 2 TR R A I A B
REBREERBBEZENFELENEET
HH100% B ZRE R (20114 : 100%) 1EH °

17. Proposed dividend

The proposed dividend to the Government is based on the total
comprehensive income for the year and the target dividend payout
ratio of 100% (2011: 100%) stated in the annual business plan
approved by the Secretary for Financial Services and the Treasury.

2012 2011
FOEH Balance at beginning of year 90,193 98,537
ERE Dividend paid (90,193) (98,537)
BREER B Dividend proposed 115,224 90,193
FRREEH Balance at end of year 115,224 90,193
18. HEeREFRE 18. Cash and cash equivalents
2012 2011
B e MIRTTHE Cash and bank balances 12,122 125,353
RITIFR Bank deposits 369,800 1,043,700
381,922 1,169,053
B RBHRA=EANUL Less: Bank deposits with original
BERITER maturity beyond three months  (362,800) (682,400)
BehERRE Cash and cash equivalents 19,122 486,653
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19. BRKIE

R2012F3A31H + BEBEES HMABEMIEH
FKPEHEFEREREENT

Notes to the Financial Statements

(Amount expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated.)
19. Capital commitments

At 31 March 2012, the Fund had capital commitments, so far as not
provided for in the financial statements, as stated below:

2012 2011
B&EL Contracted for 611 481
BEREEBARY Authorised but not contracted for 3,271 -
3,882 481

20. HEXIE

R20129F3 A31 8 » THEBUHNEEDELE
HENARFKEREZH@TNT :

20. Lease commitments

At 31 March 2012, the total future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases for leased properties were payable
as follows:

2012 2011

—FA Not later than one year 4,498 1,317
Later than one year but not later

—FRETZRAF than five years 1,500 -

5,998 1,317

21, BEALTHXRS

BREEMBREIASFEEBEOR S - HEE
ATERFRETHEMERISHELON

(a) M B A IR B EQ6.58 % T
(2011 4F : 775.4 8B7L) WFEAMEKE
AR7E - AR 42181,280.38 8 7T (2011
F 1,137 9B %) MIARIBRRE
AR 7

(b) EREATRENRERIERASH
AX - REMES  EZEER - FRE
BHES A EESHELERBETH
1,839.5 &8 7T (20114 : 1,164.1 8%
TT) 5 AR
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21. Related party transactions

Apart from those separately disclosed in the financial statements, the
other material related party transactions for the year are summarised
as follows:

(a) advisory and project services provided to related parties
amounted to HK$9,965,000 (2011: HK$7,754,000) while
frequency assignment and protection services amounted to
HK$12,893,000 (2011: HK$11,379,000);

(b) services received from related parties included accommodation,
repairs and maintenance, legal advice, central administration
and auditing. In total, the Fund incurred HK$18,395,000 on
these services (2011: HK$11,641,000); and
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B IEER AR MIRE
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21. BEALTNXREG (&)

(©) MEEATESHETCEEREEKEK
SoRERKEEMER  ELEELE
202.6 BB T (2011 4F : THIT) »

MEE A TIRMHRAEEALRHENRE - 0
R IR A AR - AR R RE AT SRR
E MEMBERmEEALTRYE - B+ 2%
EIRARRARE - HEEATHENETEE
ERTRRAEE -

R2012F 3 A31 HEAEA LR HNEHREH
R FBARRERA o

22. ZHEE

R2012F 3 A31 BB NEZEEFRITHE
EERRREMFREL -

23. B EKRERE
(a) BEBE

REHRBINMIARER  ReRBKORE
REMTANKREAS - KEHEHEERE
EHEFER  EEESHERE  BED
RTANKEBBRAKE -

(b) E¥mEk

EHARIESMT AMATERKRE
SHESHEREXREDMADHME
% -

HRNEEESBRIEA BT AHE
A E - AR FEARHEANER
[\ o

21.

(©

Related party transactions (continued)

fixed assets acquired from related parties included computer
systems, furniture and fixtures and motor vehicles. The total
amount for these assets amounted to HK$2,026,000 (2011:
HKS$ Nil).

Services provided by or to related parties were charged at the rates
payable by the general public where such services were also available
to members of the public, or on a full cost recovery basis where such
services were only available to related parties. Fixed assets supplied
by related parties were charged at full cost.

Balances with related parties as at 31 March 2012 are set out in the
statement of financial position.

22.

Contingent liabilities

There were no outstanding litigation cases against the Telecommunications
Authority as at 31 March 2012.

23.

(a)

(b)

Financial risk management
Investment policy

To provide an ancillary source of income, surplus cash is
invested in a portfolio of financial instruments. The portfolio
includes fixed deposits. It is the Fund’s policy that all
investments in financial instruments should be principal-
protected.

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows
of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
currency exchange rates.

The Fund basically does not have significant exposure to
currency risk as substantially all of its financial instruments are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars.
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23. BXEKRERE &) 23. Financial risk management (continued)
(c) EERK (c) Creditrisk
ZERMESRIEN —FHEFEERAK Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument
TEEIMSI MRS — A RIYIEIEBL will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the other party to
AR © incur a financial loss.
RBEHERANESEERE (K&t The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the
IEBENEMERRRIEMRAEEE reporting period without taking account of any collateral held
=ZIER) M : or other credit enhancements is shown below:
2012 2011
FEUIR R R IZ & Debtors and deposits 3,920 996
JRE st B 3 A 1R 5K Amounts due from related parties - 1,285
JE W 2, Interest receivable 11,669 8,258
HNEE ST Placement with the Exchange Fund 722,241 -
RITHER Bank deposits 369,800 1,043,700
RITHE Bank balances 12,121 125,350
ko] Total 1,119,751 1,179,589
RBERESERR - AT RFRY To minimise credit risks, all fixed deposits are placed with
TR B BRIFFRERST - licensed banks in Hong Kong.
ERNERSTER - HIEBEEERR A For the placement with the Exchange Fund, the credit risk is
1K - considered to be low.
(d) HRBESRAR (d) Liquidity risk
MEBECREBIEREERTHEEREE Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in
BN EERBERENRER meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities.
LEESFREAMENRESNENE The Fund manages liquidity risk by forecasting the amount
BEEESNRBES  REERHE of cash required and monitoring the working capital of the
R - HRAAMEN B R A &R Fund to ensure that all liabilities due and known funding
EANESHER HREEESHEER requirements could be met. As the Fund has a strong liquidity
MR ES  ERBESEBRKEE position, it has a very low level of liquidity risk.
1K -
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23. BIKERER &) 23. Financial risk management (continued)
(e) F=E@AMR (e) Interest rate risk
FI R & B ¥5 A T 35 B R & B) M 5| BUE 1B Interest rate risk refers to the risk of loss arising from changes
MR - FIXRERA#E—FTHAEAFE in market interest rates. This can be further classified into fair
FERBEESREFNERR - value interest rate risk and cash flow interest rate risk.
NFEEFNERRREIESHTIAENAFE Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of
SEMSHNEEMESNERR - AR a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
LEESHMA RITEFIIREE N EET market interest rates. Since all of the Fund’s bank deposits
BRE  EWBHNER AR GHFER bear interest at fixed rates, their fair values will fall when
HMAFESE Y- A ARELF market interest rates increase. However, as they are all
FEREHEKANEIR - T5FEEE) stated at amortised cost, changes in market interest rates will
WAETZHIREEMESNEF & not affect their carrying amounts and the Fund’s profit and
& - reserves.
HEREFERBREESBITARRE Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that future cash flows
ReREYHEATISF KB MKE R of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
%o HEASEB MRS NEN EE in market interest rates. The Fund’s exposure to cash flow
RN AEIWESRA)TBIRE © interest rate risk is small as it has no major floating-rate
investments.
NEEBFEEEERERARANIRE The Fund’s exposure to interest rate risk, based on the major
B TReaHEEEEBHZIHAS interest bearing assets stated at carrying amounts at the
B (MEPURKENBHAE) 7| RE end of the reporting period and categorised by the earlier of
BEESEENFERRERLOT contractual repricing dates or maturity dates, is set out below:
EEEED
Repricing period
HB3MEA
3EARUT BFRBB1F wEE
More than
3 months 3 months but not
or less more than 1 year Total
2012 2012
RITIFR Bank deposits 123,100 246,700 369,800
2011 2011
IRITER Bank deposits 664,700 379,000 1,043,700
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24,

Financial risk management (continued)
Other financial risk

The Fund is exposed to financial risk arising from changes in
the interest rate on the placement with the Exchange Fund
which is determined every January (Note 10). It was estimated
that, as at 31 March 2012, a 50 basis point increase/decrease
in the interest rate for 2011 and 2012, with all other variables
held constant, would increase/decrease the profit for the year
and reserves by HK$2,751,000.

Fair values

The fair values of financial instruments quoted in active
markets are based on their quoted prices at the end of the
reporting period. In the absence of such quoted market
prices, fair values are estimated using present value or
other valuation techniques, using inputs based on market
conditions existing at the end of the reporting period.

All financial instruments are stated in the statement of financial
position at amounts equal to or not materially different from
their fair values.

Non-adjusting event after the reporting
period

On 1 April 2012, the Communications Authority Ordinance came
into operation. The Office of the Communications Authority (OFCA),
the executive arm of the Communications Authority, was formed
by merging the OFTA and the relevant divisions of the Television
and Entertainment Licensing Authority. By virtue of section 25 of
the ordinance, the OFTA Trading Fund was renamed as the OFCA
Trading Fund on the same date.

It was estimated that as a result of the above change, in the year
ending 31 March 2013 the revenue of the trading fund would increase
by 17.6% while the operation costs would increase by 26.4%.
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25. Possible impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued
but not yet effective for the year ended
31 March 2012

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has
issued a number of amendments, new standards and interpretations
which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 March 2012 and
which have not been early adopted in these financial statements.

The Fund is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments, new standards and interpretations is
expected to be in the period of initial adoption. So far it has concluded
that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on
the Fund'’s results of operations and financial position.

The following developments may result in new or amended
disclosures in future financial statements:
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25. Possible impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued
but not yet effective for the year ended
31 March 2012 (continued)

RUT RSS2 &ERN
S HEENR
Effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after

FERIENE 1 (8B
Ll ELERIET
- EHRERHEE DS

EBGHEEIZ 195 (2011)[EBIEF)

ERGRAERR [ERIA : 28]
METT-SREERSRAENYE

BEMBHREERETH
[ERTE : BE] 0BT

Amendments to HKAS 1 (Revised), 2012%7A1H
Presentation of Financial Statements - 1 July 2012
Presentation of Items of
Other Comprehensive Income

HKAS 19 (2011), Employee Benefits 2013%1A1H

1 January 2013

2014F1A1H
1 January 2014

Amendments to HKAS 32, Financial Instruments:
Presentation - Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

Amendments to HKFRS 7, Financial Instruments:
Disclosures

-RE-cREENEY

-RE-cREERSRARNYH

BEMBREERFON [2BTA]

EANBREENE1F [ATEHE]

- Disclosures - Transfers of Financial Assets
- Disclosures - Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments

HKFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement

201167818
1 July 2011

2013%1A1H
1 January 2013

2015F1A1H
1 January 2015

20131418
1 January 2013
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Branch Responsibilities

OFTA was established as an independent Government department on
1 July 1993 and is the executive arm of the TA. The TA is appointed under
the Telecommunications Ordinance (Cap.106) as the statutory body

responsible for regulating the telecommunications industry.

Since June 1995, OFTA has been operating on a trading fund basis, with its

funding supported by income derived mainly from licence fees.

With about 330 staff members, OFTA’s major role is to regulate,
and facilitate the development of the telecommunications sector. Its
responsibilities include economic and technical regulation, enforcing fair
competition rules, coordinating the development of the telecommunications
infrastructure, investigating consumer and industry complaints pertaining
to suspected breach of provisions in the Telecommunications Ordinance
and licence conditions, managing the radio frequency spectrum,
coordinating satellite orbital positions, providing advice to the Government
on telecommunications matters, representing Hong Kong in the ITU and
other international fora, and ensuring Hong Kong’s compliance with relevant

international agreements.

OFTA’s functions are performed by its three branches and three
units: Regulatory Affairs Branch, Operations Branch, Support Branch,
Competition Unit, Economic Analysis and Research Unit and Legal Support

Unit. The main duties of these branches and units are:
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The Regulatory Affairs Branch oversees the regulation

and licensing of public telecommunications services, enforces licence
conditions and administers the telecommunications numbering plan.
The responsibilities of the Branch also include providing advice on
regulatory accounting to the TA, monitoring the performance of public
telecommunications operators, investigating industry complaints regarding
public telecommunications services, handling determinations and
mediations to resolve industry disputes related to interconnection, sharing of
facilities and access, facilitating public mobile network operators’ access to
land to place radiocommunications installations and coordinating the laying

of ducts for telecommunications in public roads.

The Operations Branch manages Hong Kong’s radio frequency
spectrum, provides advice to the Government on telecommunications

matters and renders technical support in the regulation of broadcasting
services and the implementation of the digital terrestrial television policy. Its
responsibilities also include co-ordinating the use of radiocommunications
and broadcasting frequencies with the Mainland and the Macao authorities,
licensing private telecommunications services, investigating poor
broadcast reception and recommending technical solutions, investigating
radio interference and radiation hazard complaints, prosecuting illegal
use of telecommunications equipment, administering examination and
certification of maritime radio operation personnel and co-ordinating access
to common parts of buildings by operators for the purpose of installing

telecommunications / broadcasting equipment and wirings.
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The Support Branch enforces the UEMO (except the parts related to
fraudulent activities) which regulates the sending of commercial electronic

messages, maintains the “DNC Registers” system for the use of the
general public and businesses / organisations, cooperate with international
and local anti-spam organisations to combat spam, oversees technical
standards and international affairs, and implements OFTA’s public relations
and administrative functions. On the technical side, its portfolio covers the
regulation and licensing of communications satellite systems and services,
ensuring compliance with various international agreements, developing
technical standards and approving related equipment. On the administrative
side, it is responsible for communicating with the media, responding to
public enquiries, organising publicity and public relations events, conducting
consumer education programmes, handling consumer complaints
pertaining to suspected breach of provisions in the Telecommunications
Ordinance and licence conditions, and devising information technology,

human resources and financial management strategies.

The Competition Unit is concerned with the enforcement of the
competition rules prohibiting anti-competitive practices and misleading

conduct.

The Economic Analysis and Research Unit is responsible
for providing economic assessments in the consideration of regulatory and

competition policies.

The Legal Support Unit provides legal assistance to the TA so that
he may carry out his functions under the Telecommunications Ordinance in

a satisfactory manner.

OFFICE OF THE TELECOMMUNICATIONS AUTHORITY TRADING FUND REPORT 2011/12

82



Kié% B

Appendix B

ENEBRAESLES OFTA Organisation Chart
HE201243H31H As at 31 March 2012

83 EREERE 2011 12FLBEEGREE



e R SRR E R

Advisory & Spectrum Management Division

BT THRAD
Chief Telecom Engineer

RERH
Regulatory Division 1

REREE 1

Head, Regulatory 1
REB 2

Regulatory Division 2

RERIEE 2
Head, Regulatory 2

HRIRER

Special Task Division

FRIBGREE
Head, Special Task

THREHM

BIRRE
Mr P HMa

PRFEELE
Mr TY Chan

FAIERA S
Mr Lawrence
S M Kwan

HRERE
Mr Sanda
S T Cheuk

Administrative Services Division

B = EWE
Departmental Secretary

BEM

Development Division

B TIZAD
Chief Telecom Engineer

FEER

Finance Division

BT EEE

Financial Controller

TRk Z
Miss Stephanie
S P Cheung

BB EAE
Mr C K Cheng

RIB &
Mr Patrick P Y Ho

ERENEE TuHEEE TR EE EEBEE
Mr Isaac W M Ip Mr L H Ting Mr Sammy C S Li Mr W K Luk
i M SR AR SRR EIE (—) - SEREREIAE (D) BRUEEA
Advisory & Support  Spectrum Planning Spectrum Planning  Stardards Section
Section Section 1 Section 2
BptH e SEE
Mr Andrew S K Tang
Bl TAE
Enforcement Section
BRERE S FEpH 22 +
Mr Warren W H Kwok Ms Helen Y S Lai
REH (1) REM (12)

Regulatory Section 11

BRI EE
Mr Sidney S Y Tsan
REMH (21)
Regulatory Section 21

EEELE
Mr Danny K W Wong
RIS AE (1)

Special Task Section 1

RFRZ L
Miss Anna Y W Cheung
BIEPPILE
Deputy Departmental
Secretary

- el
Mr T S Chew
BREESEE
Broadcasting
Support Section

BRRELE
Mr Frank K H Chan
BRRHRAE
Information
Technology Section

BRRFmLZ T
Miss Kaylina C K Tsang
it/ YRHL EZR
Accounts/Supplies
Section

ERB Lt
Ms Diana KM Fu
RIEBHE

Public Affairs Section

Regulatory Section 12

IR EE
Mr Raymond K Ho
HEMH (22)
Regulatory Section 22

BAELE
Mr Kingsley K H Young
FERIESAH (2)
Special Task Section 2

RIfEKM Z =
Ms Dollen W L Sze-To
BEdE

Translation Section

FRZBA B4
Mr Francis W M Chan
HHNERAE
External Affairs
Section

FXRERE
Mr Alvin W H Li
B EFAEMA
Unsolicited Electronic
Messages Section

AEEL L
Ms Betty Y H Tse
W AZE

Revenue Section

ERHELLE
Ms Jamay T M Wong
SHEE B
Consumer Affairs
Section

AEREE
Mr Sam K S Ho
B 5
Trade Section

PhABIE kL
Mr SK Yiu
FEM (23)

Regulatory Section 23

EEELL
Ms Christine K N Chim
HESBHE
Special Duty Section
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Membership of Advisory Committees

Telecommunications Numbering Advisory

Committee

(B2 20124#3/31H) (as at 31 March 2012)
*fE Chairman
BeFEE Mr Danny LAU
EHEEBMBAE RE) Assistant Director (Regulatory Affairs), OFTA
= Secretary
CEE-P Mr Joe Chan
BAEERHREBSLE (RE) Regulatory Affairs Manager (Regulatory Affairs), OFTA
KE Members
PR Dr Victor HUNG
HEEZEENRE Representative of Consumer Council
ERATIRM dt Ir Dr Ringo LAM
BATIRAEGNRE Representative of Hong Kong Institution of Engineers
WA Mr Henry CHEUNG
TREBEEEEESGRE Representative of Institution of Engineering and Technology Hong Kong
ZIRTFRE Mr James LAU
AEAENAPHEREK Representative of Hong Kong Telecommunications Users Group
ZEBmELE Mr Kenneth LAU
AR BAEBERE Representative of Communications Association of Hong Kong
HERLE Mr Kenny CHIU
BEAEGSRREEREK Representative of Hong Kong Wireless Technology Industry Association
FRISEA L4 Mr C M CHAN
BREEARAR R Representative of PCCW-HKT Telephone Limited and

Hong Kong Telecommunications (HKT) Limited X3 Hong Kong Telecommunications (HKT) Limited
TS Mr C M CHAN
Hong Kong Telecommunications (HKT) Limited {X. 3% Representative of Hong Kong Telecommunications (HKT) Limited
BmELL Ms Winnie MA
MEIRFREAFR A AIRE Representative of Hutchison Global Communications Limited
BmELL Ms Winnie MA
M EEARAANREK Representative of Hutchison Telephone Company Limited
BEREE Mr Bill YEUNG
BEREHRERERAANRE Representative of Hong Kong Cable Television Limited
BEREE Mr Bill YEUNG
NEBHARARRE Representative of Wharf T & T Limited
REPEEE Mr Kenneth NG
it AEAARATNRE Representative of New World Telecommunications Limited
PER e Mr Ken YIU
EATEMEBERAARE Representative of Hong Kong Broadband Network Limited
REEEE Mr Sutton CHEUNG
BREE (B8) ARARIRE Representative of ComNet Telecom (HK) Limited
FRELEE Mr Kenny YU
HBBREMERATNE Representative of SmarTone Mobile Communications Limited
FiREEE Mr Kenny YU
SmarTone Communications Limited 1<% Representative of SmarTone Communications Limited
kP L+ Ms Paulina LAU
EABRBBAFRAAKRE Representative of CSL Limited
B Rt Mr Almond TSO
FREBBEEERRARE Representative of China Mobile Hong Kong Company Limited
FEElR L Mr KK LUK
PR AR A RIRE Representative of HKC Network Limited

REREE
HHNERIRTS,EIEERE rAERE
(HINEEARTS) FhEr R B R

Mr KW CHAN
Representative of external FTNS / fixed carrier licensees / unified carrier
(external fixed services) licensees as a group
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EMRERIBHEANES

Telecommunications Numbering Advisory
Committee (continued)

FREE A e 4 Mr Stephen CHAN

HHNE MRS S R BIRE Representative of external telecommunications service (ETS) operators as a group
BEEREE Mr Tony WONG

B E RS S R BIRE Representative of mobile virtual network operators (MVNOS) as a group
R S A Mr Kit CHAN

ESBETRGE I ARINEK Representative of radio paging operators as a group

BIREELE Mr Allen LAW

AR TS & i pa R PR R P B R Representative of services-based operator (SBO) licensees as a group
NEE TR Ir K F MAN

BAEBRNAE Representative of Hong Kong Police Force

HEREE Mr Frankie CHIU

ERIEEAL Members appointed on an ad personam basis

FREEMATE T Dr Patrick CHAN

ERIEEAL Members appointed on an ad personam basis

BRIE 2 + Ms Eva CHAN

ERIEEAL Members appointed on an ad personam basis

REZELt Ms Fannie CHEUNG

BERZEEAL

Members appointed on an ad personam basis

RESKHEHAERS

Regulatory Affairs Advisory Committee

(220123 /31 H) (as at 31 March 2012)

*FE Chairman

EEREEE MrY KHA

BB BRI Deputy Director-General, OFTA

W& Secretary

BIAFExE Mr Danny LAU

BMEEREIEMAE (RE) Assistant Director (Regulatory Affairs), OFTA

8 Members

FRoK1E TR2AM Ir Raymond CHAN

BEATRAEGNRE Representative of Hong Kong Institution of Engineers

HIRR AL Mr Jolly WONG

TIRERREE (BESE) RE Representative of the Institution of Engineering and Technology Hong Kong
EFMEE Mr Marcus VASS

AEAEAAPHEREK Representative of Hong Kong Telecommunications Users Group
FREBER ST Mr Gilbert CHAN

AEBBAMERSRE Representative of Communications Association of Hong Kong
FRELE Mr Ken FONG

ERBESEEEERE Representative of HK Wireless Technology Industry Association
MEEFRE Mr Peter LAM

EABFARDAKEK Representative of PCCW-HKT Telephone Limited

MREEH L Mr Peter LAM

Hong Kong Telecommunications (HKT) Limited {X.3% Representative of Hong Kong Telecommunications (HKT) Limited
BhELt Ms Winnie MA

FRIRHREMERAGIREK Representative of Hutchison Global Communications Limited
BHmELL Ms Winnie MA

MR EFEARAFREK Representative of Hutchison Telephone Company Limited
BmELL Ms Winnie MA

Genius Brand Limited X 2 Representative of Genius Brand Limited

RESE L2+ Ms Agnes TAN

NEEHARARRE Representative of Wharf T & T Limited

RESE L+ Ms Agnes TAN

AEEHRBRERRAIRE Representative of Hong Kong Cable Television Limited
REEFTE Mr Richard LEUNG

Mt ABRERAARE

Representative of New World Telecommunications Limited
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Membership of Advisory Committees

Regulatory Affairs Advisory Committee

(continued)
R L Mr Ken YIU
BAREMEBER D AREK Representative of Hong Kong Broadband Network Limited
FXfmEE MrTLOR
HIS@EEMARABNRE Representative of SmarTone Mobile Communications Limited
FXfmEE MrTLOR
SmarTone Communications Limited 1 & Representative of SmarTone Communications Limited
SEELt Ms Alison KO
EREHEBAGRARNE Representative of CSL Limited
BERLE Mr Eric YEUNG
REBZEESFRAANRE Representative of China Mobile Hong Kong Company Limited
MR EE Mr Clifford HO
HRBEANENBRARNRE Representative of Towngas Telecommunications Fixed Network Limited
REEELE Mr Sutton CHEUNG
ZBERE (B8) BARAFTREK Representative of ComNet Telecom (HK) Limited
ZIEBmELE Mr Kenneth LAU
TraxComm Limited X 3% Representative of TraxComm Limited
Rk B SR S A Mr K K LUK
FBMREERARNRE Representative of HKC Network Limited
Ms Christy DITCHBURN Ms Christy DITCHBURN

HINERIRTSEIEERE R ERE
(HHMNEERTS) IR R AR K

Representative of external FTNS / fixed carrier / unified carrier
(external fixed services) licensees as a group

BREEE Mr Man LIU
HHNEHRBEIEABIRE Representative of external telecommunications service (ETS) operators as a group
BBt Dr Oliver YAU
PRI EREK Representative of small and medium enterprises
EkERE Mr York MOK
ERIZEEAL Members appointed on an ad personam basis
#®AeEL Dr Yan XU
ERIZEEAL Members appointed on an ad personam basis

BEREMELBHAES

Radio Spectrum Advisory Committee

(220123 /31 H) (as at 31 March 2012)
FE Chairman
BERLE MrTF SO
THEIERENIRAEL (1T) Assistant Director (Operations), OFTA
& Secretary
TIYHERE Mr L HTING
EANEEFEMAEMTIZAM (JERRE]) Senior Telecommunications Engineer (Spectrum Planning), OFTA
K& Members
RREEL Dr Victor HUNG
HEEZEGNRE Representative of Consumer Council
ZERTEM - B IrDr CK LI
BEATIRAMEGNRE Representative of Hong Kong Institution of Engineers
BROEEE K% Mr HW CHAN
IRERERESEESERE Representative of Institution of Engineering and Technology Hong Kong
MREDFH B Mr Bruce LAM
ARBHEBHERE Representative of Communications Association of Hong Kong
BEEEE Mr Billy YEUNG
AEESHEEERE Representative of Hong Kong Wireless Technology Industry Association
BRNEE Mr Alan CHOI

A [EE EAABA () RIS, EEMRERFEEADINRE

Representative of local FTNS / fixed carrier (wireline and wireless-based) licensees as a group
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Radio Spectrum Advisory Committee

(continued)
BINERE Mr Mike PAN
FREBEEBERAFE Representative of China Mobile Hong Kong Company Limited
BRIEE Mr Alan CHOI
HIS@mEMARABNRE Representative of SmarTone Mobile Communications Limited
ERSE MrTM LAU
M EEBRAGRE Representative of Hutchison Telephone Company Limited
ERSE MrTM LAU
Genius Brand Limited X 3 Representative of Genius Brand Limited
HMEZL Ms Joanna CHIU
BRBEBEMERAGREK Representative of CSL Limited
Eﬂﬂx fE Mr Adam WONG
BEEARAFT R Representative of PCCW-HKT Telephone Limited and
Hong Kong Telecommunications (HKT) Limited X % Hong Kong Telecommunications (HKT) Limited
AEEEE Mr H C HUNG

HWHONEHRTS,EEERE fRAERE
(HMNEEIRTS) Fhe R R AR E

Representative of external FTNS / fixed carrier / unified carrier
(external fixed services) licensees as a group

FR A& 4 MrY H CHAN

TMEEBRABTRE Representative of Asia Satellite Telecommunications Company Limited
FRE A Mr X CHEN

TRBEHEARATNRE Representative of APT Satellite Company Limited
BHERAE Mr Raymond WONG
ERBETRBEHEANNRE Representative of radio paging operators as a group
FRIBIM T4 MrY C CHAN

REBHARNKEK Representative of broadcasters (free TV) as a group
KEBEE Mr Carlson CHU

W BERARNREK Representative of broadcasters (pay TV) as a group
BEREE Mr Francis KWOK

BiEEaRRNRE Representative of sound broadcasters as a group
WEBRAE Mr Johnny SIU

(RESEERAIREK Representative of amateur radio societies as a group
o ke Mr C KYUEN

Rk Representative of Civil Aviation Department
RERASEAE Mr HM CHEUNG

BAEBRNAE Representative of Hong Kong Police Force
ZEHEL Dr Francis LAU

ERIZEAL Members appointed on an ad personam basis

hisi 2z + Ms Christine IU

BERZEAL

Members appointed on an ad personam basis

RiTiEEZAEER Technical Standards Advisory Committee
(B22012F3H31H) (as at 31 March 2012)

FE Chairman

%ﬁlﬁﬁ*ﬁi Mr Chaucer LEUNG

BAEERIIERE (FR) Assistant Director (Support), OFTA

W& Secretary

FEEER 4 Mr W K LUK

BEMEER=REALIIZA (BHIEE) Senior Telecommunications Engineer (Standards), OFTA

24=1 Members

BRIBF KA Mr Brian CHENG

HEBEZEERE Representative of Consumer Council

AL Ti2ED Ir Christopher TO

EATREEGNRE Representative of Hong Kong Institution of Engineers

Zalgemt Dr K F TSANG

IREEREEERESESBERE Representative of Institution of Engineering and Technology Hong Kong
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Membership of Advisory Committees

Technical Standards Advisory Committee

(continued)

BRIELE Mr Duncan FUNG
BEBEENRERREK Representative of Hong Kong Productivity Council
AEREE Mr Stephen HO
EABAEBEAE Representative of Communications Association of Hong Kong
TRELE Mr Keith LIE
AEESHEEERAR Representative of Hong Kong Wireless Technology Industry Association
RIKRRELE Mr W K CHEUNG
ARBEARATR Representative of PCCW-HKT Telephone Limited and

Hong Kong Telecommunications (HKT) Limited X & Hong Kong Telecommunications (HKT) Limited
RIKBEE Mr W K CHEUNG
Hong Kong Telecommunications (HKT) Limited {X. % Representative of Hong Kong Telecommunications (HKT) Limited
REREE Mr Angus YU
MRRRRBAMERRRIRE Representative of Hutchison Global Communications Limited
RERKE Mr Angus YU
MR EEARABRE Representative of Hutchison Telephone Company Limited
RERKE Mr Angus YU
Genius Brand Limited £ % Representative of Genius Brand Limited
BEREE Mr Bill YEUNG
EREHRERERATNRE Representative of Hong Kong Cable Television Limited
BERLE Mr Bill YEUNG
NEEHARARRE Representative of Wharf T & T Limited
REBELE Mr Johnny CHEUNG
it AEAARATNE Representative of New World Telecommunications Limited
BRmELE Mr Ken YIU
BAREMEEER D AREK Representative of Hong Kong Broadband Network Limited
HRRRE MrY C WONG
HRBEMERERAGREK Representative of Towngas Telecommunications Fixed Network Limited
RREEE Mr Sutton CHEUNG
FRER (58) ARAFREK Representative of ComNet Telecom (HK) Limited
BRBELLE Mr Peter LOK
TraxComm Limited X% Representative of TraxComm Limited
FEEIR % Mr KK LUK
PR AR A RRE Representative of HKC Network Limited
IS EE Mr C HHO
HISBEMARABRE Representative of SmarTone Mobile Communications Limited
S RE Mr C HHO
SmarTone Communications Limited 1% Representative of SmarTone Communications Limited
FRERE Mr Christopher WONG
EAREBAMARAGIRE Representative of CSL Limited
BRRR Mr Alex CHENG
FEBBEEERRARE Representative of China Mobile Hong Kong Company Limited
EFBEE Mr Benny NG
HHNE AR = PR RBIR R Representative of external telecommunications service (ETS) operators as a group
AiREEE Mr Fergus HO
B E A S R AR E Representative of mobile virtual network operators (MVNOS) as a group
BEREE Mr Leo KAN
ESBETRGENHEARINE Representative of radio paging operators as a group
RFEBEE Mr C K CHEUNG
RBERARNKEK Representative of broadcasters (free TV) as a group
KREBREE Mr Carlson CHU
I EBERARINE Representative of broadcasters (pay TV) as a group
RAE Mr Francis KWOK
BEEAANRE Representative of sound broadcasters as a group
BARIRE B4 Mr L T KWAN
ERIZEAL Members appointed on an ad personam basis
HREIRM > Ft Ir Dr Peter CHIU
ERIZEEAL Members appointed on an ad personam basis
MAEL L Ms Joe NGAI
BRI ZEFEAL Members appointed on an ad personam basis
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BHEESY

Telecommunications Users and Consumers
Advisory Committee

(BZ22012F3H31H) (as at 31 March 2012)

S Chairman

EERLE MrY K HA

EAEERRIBE Deputy Director-General, OFTA

g Secretary

BEEBLt Ms Jamay WONG

BAERRHEEEHEE Head of Consumer Affairs, OFTA

K8 Members

BB kL Mr Alfred FUNG

EEELZEENREK Representative of Consumer Council

MIRIE & Mr Tiger LIN

BEBAEBERE Representative of Communications Association of Hong Kong
FriEEE Mr Alexander YU

AEREMAPHERE Representative of Hong Kong Telecommunications Users Group
RAARE Mr Adrian CHEUNG

EABEENRE Representative of Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce
REFUMEEE Mr Joseph LEUNG

BEAESHEEBEREK Representative of Hong Kong Wireless Technology Industry Association
iR A MrSHTAM

S5REALTHRE Representative of the disabled community

AR E Mr B YU

s ALTHRE Representative of the disabled community
BRELE Mr Timothy MA

Z AR &K Representative of the aged community
BPEELE Mr Kenneth CHOY

NI RERE Representative of small and medium enterprises
REBELL Ms C M CHAN

HEREMEREK Representative of Social Welfare Department *
HEERE Mr T W SIN

HEBRRE Representative of Education Bureau

BEEREE Mr Tony WONG

BT EMEHT AR N EREK Representative of Office of the Government Chief Information Officer
WMEELZL Ms Elsa CHENG

NRAL Representative as a member of the public
WML LKL Ms Pauline YUNG

NRAT Representative as a member of the public

PRIzt EE Mr Stanley CHEN

NRAT Representative as a member of the public
REBFLL Ms Martha LEUNG

NBRAT Representative as a member of the public
FREZELE Ms K C WONG

NBAT Representative as a member of the public
REFETE Mr M K LEUNG

NRAL Representative as a member of the public

BB Z+ Ms Ivy CHENG

DRANL Representative as a member of the public
EREL+ Ms June WONG

NRAT Representative as a member of the public
FIRFAEE Mr C B WONG

NBRAT Representative as a member of the public
REEXRLE Mr Francis NGAI

NBAT Representative as a member of the public
YB¥BLL Ms Florence MAN

ERIZEEAL Member appointed on an ad personam basis
BREELE Mr Thomas SUN

ERIEFEAL Member appointed on an ad personam basis
HEERFENEES R * Attending meetings on need basis only.
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Appendix D

#2011 12 RIEEZEEEWN
ERFIERERE

2011 125 [E - BfIE2H20ERGH 1 ES
HHBMBREREREZ -

BRI R

Processing of Licence Applications

BEERERSER

Mobile Radio System Licence

Actual Average Performance against the

Performance Pledge 2011/12

In 2011/12, we achieved/surpassed our performance targets in all of 29 job

areas.

BaVEIES
Establishment of a new system

3

ETIER
working days

98%

100%

B INEREMES
Relocation / Addition of base station

32

BTIER

working days

98%

100%

MEBHTA

Addition of mobile station
WEtEE
For stations of taxis
HfhEA
For other stations

A TIER
working days

ETIEXR
working days

99%
99%

100%
100%

FREEE AT
Replacement of mobile station equipment
HLTES
For stations of taxis
HihE &
For other stations

ETIEXR

working days

AR
working days

99%
99%

100%
100%

FHREMELRMN

Replacement of base station equipment

BETIEXR

working days

99%

100%

BRI

Issue of licence

ATER
working days

99%

100%

BRERHER

Radio Dealers Licence

4

AT EXR

working days

98%

100%

I BERESEFHEER
Industrial, Scientific and Medical
Electronic Machines Licence

fATER
working days

99%

100%
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Processing of Licence Applications (continued)

BESATRES R RBBOEERR
Radio Determination and Conveyance of
Commands, Status and Data Licence

ETIEXR
working days

99%

100%

HEBRAAREERR

SateIIE:e MAaster Antenna Television Licence 1 1 \ﬂ/\%loi{ifgazays 98 % 1 OO %
B AR

Suhip Station Licence oﬁ?fggdays 9 8 % 1 OO %
EBBLIRR ATHE

Amateur Station Licence

working days

98%

100%

BRI EAMRGER
Self-provided External
Telecommunications System (SPETS) Licence

26 & T{ER
working days

99%

100%

R RE CHIRBE IR
Service-based Operators Licence —
Class 1 and Class 2 Services

1 ETIER

working days

95%

100%

F = HARRTS & i R
Service-based Operators Licence —
Class 3 Services

-1 ETIER

working days

BiE (EEMEED - HBNEIFREQN) RERERZEDE

99%

Processing of Certificate and Endorsement Applications under STCW Convention

100%

2 LBRNZE2EZREERET
GMDSS Certificate and Endorsement

TR
working days

95%

100%

2R LBRNZEZNEEERBRE NET

GMDSS Certificate of Equivalent
Competency and Endorsement

BRETERE

5 ETIEXR

working days

95%

100%

Investigation of Radio Interference

e RGN & ATIEXR (0] o)
Interference on commercial services working days 96 /0 1 OO A)
HERRBHTE ATIER

Interference on broadcasting services

working days

96%

100%
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Appendix D

BRI, R
Processing of Applications for Numbers / Codes

FEBC AN IRIE RIS
Assignment of telecommunications
numbers and codes

-1 O BAIEX
working days

100%

100%

BiZ - BIEFE Y BH) B AR
Checking, processing and acceptance of return
of telecommunications numbers

"| O &l THER
working days

BEEAREHHERER (BMKRG) IEREGLIEEERF

100%

100%

Handling of Consumer Complaints against Telecommunications Operators involving Suspected Breach of the
Telecommunications Ordinance or Licence Conditions

FAmERFA (KK ALERG T8
EE)

Full reply to complainant (or interim reply if full
reply is not ready)

BESHEHHAR (EMMKRAD THBRFEER  NEAREMENRBENTRANEIEBLIRF

2 B TIEXR

working days

100%

Handling of Complaints against Operators relating to Competition Provisions or Misleading or Deceptive Conduct
Provisions of the Telecommunications Ordinance

TR ATAE (SR FATAE MRFA
FERER)

Completion of full investigation (or report of
progress to the complainant if full investigation is
not completed)

BENFSHEREORSE (R (BAKH) THRFIHX[ARBERREENTROESTMERS)

YIFRHE K
Z1& 4B AR
Within a further 4
months after preliminary
investigation

80%

100%

Handling of Industry Complaints against Operators (except for complaints relating to Competition Provisions or
Misleading or Deceptive Conduct Provisions of the Telecommunications Ordinance)

Completion of full investigation

4 BEIHEX
Within 45
working days

EEAMEEER (FEARTHREHKN) NBHK

TR ATAE (SR T FATE MRFA
EHREE)

Completion of full investigation (or report of
progress to the complainant if full investigation is
not completed)

ENEER 2011 126X BESHRES

‘I &2 88N
Within 10
weeks

Handling of Reports on Suspected Contravention of the Unsolicited Electronic Messages Ordinance

90%

R R EES
No new case

97%



HERBRARERENAREARRFFHER
Reply to Public Enquiries and Complaints of OFTA’s Services

FAACIESH (SRR FHARERG T
BEE) fAT{ERA 0 o
Full reply for enquiries (or interim reply if full reply Within 7 90 /0 1 OO A)

working days
cannot be provided)

SUMBITER A (A SR B S B
ANERER) 15 Extxn

Full reply for complaints (or report of progress Within 15 90% '1 OO%

to the complainant if full investigation is not working days
completed)
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Appendix E

Licences Issued and Renewed

EMERFRREE

95

ﬁ?’é‘ S EBNEMBRREER Telecommunications Licences Issued/
BB EE Renewed and Revenue Collected
B2 201293 731 HFEA For the year ended 31 March 2012
EESEEETEE Aeronautical VHF Fixed Station 34 51,000
fizsREs Aircraft Station 291 43,012
%ﬁ%ﬁf’ﬂﬂé%ﬁﬁﬂ Amateur ATO 547 87,520
£8E8 Amateur Station 2,550 383,600
BRBERERER Broadcast Radio Relay Station 13 11,875
EEEEER Broadcast Relay Station 3 3,570
MR Duplicate Licence 56 3,080
ZIMELEE Examination & Issue of Certificate 370 136,160
ERES Experimental Station 97 30,250
BRHETERE Fixed Carrier (Restricted) 1 640,400
EEExEERAEEREREERENRE Fixed Carrier Licence for Terrestrial Television Broadcast 2 19,402,322
& Telecommunications Service

Bl EMBRRERETERE Fixed Telecommunications Network Services or Fixed Carrier 20 22,169,042
BEER (BiX) Hotel Television (Transmission) 122 540,721
A0/ O] & Import / Export Permit 1,200 180,000
I% RERBEBETEN Industrial, Scientific & Medical Electronic Machine 684 62,087
BaERE Mobile Carrier 1 834,408
BRHBDHERE Mobile Carrier (Restricted) 1 53,000
BOHESERAGAEABHBEERR Mobile Radio System or Private Mobile Radio System 4,557 29,740,882
LAESEETRR Private Radio Paging System 22 235,947
EHEHR Private Telegraph 3 4,934
DEESTENRE Public Radiocommunications Service 9 2,899,836
BRER (HERH) Radio Dealers (Unrestricted) 2,599 3,784,000

BREBNER Radiocommunications School 7 2,100

SEBATUARES - RERZEGR Radiodetermination and Conveyance of Commands, 101 112,051

Status and Data

BEBRLARE Satellite Master Antenna Television 78 5,233,075
BREINEHRE Self-Provided External Telecommunications System 9 6,813
REEREER — S BRE_FRE Services-Based Operator of Class 1 or 2 Service 14 1,258,700
REEMERR — E-8RS Services-Based Operator of Class 3 Service 510 11,285,674
wHES Ship Station 2,814 391,045
TREAERE Space Station Carrier 9 1,345,500
N EGERARE Taxi Radiocommunications Service 27 632,529
FRBEE — RBRK Unified Carrier - Mobile Services 10 163,957,106
ZABIRE — U/ YN ETRE Unified Carrier - Fixed Internal / External Services 28 82,409,676
FAmERTEES Wide Band Link & Relay Station 62 143,875
“y Total 16,846 348,075,790
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EMEER
BHEER
Office of the Telecommunications Authority
#h it Address D BREFERNER21IIRHALAE29E

29/F, Wu Chung House, 213 Queen's Road East,
Wan Chai, Hong Kong

BHELE Enquiry Hotline : 2961 6333
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